

UNFPA 2023 ORANGE BOOK OF RESULTS

Key Results Achieved at the Country Level

2023 ORANGE BOOK OF RESULTS

Key Results Achieved at the Country Level

© 2023 by the United Nations Population Fund

CONTACT INFORMATION

United Nations Population Fund 605 Third Avenue New York, NY 10158 USA

Tharanga Godallage godallage@unfpa.org

CONTENT DEVELOPMENT UNFPA

EDITING Beyond the Jargon

COVER PHOTOS

© UNFPA Burkina Faso
© UNFPA Georgia/Gela Bedianashvili
© UNFPA Mongolia
© UNFPA Peru
© UNFPA Somalia/Luis Tato
© UNFPA South Sudan

DESIGN AND LAYOUT

Rec Design

HOW TO CITE THIS PUBLICATION

United Nations Population Fund (2023). 2023 Orange Book of Results. New York, New York.

For more results information visit www.unfpa.org/data/results



2023 ORANGE BOOK OF RESULTS

Key Results Achieved at the Country Level





INTRODUCTION

This annex highlights over 1,000 key results achieved at the country and sub-regional levels, with the support of UNFPA in 2023. It covers results only at the country programme output level. These results include (a) changing the laws, policies, plans, strategies, programmes and accountability frameworks; (b) developing and adjusting the national and subnational systems and tools; (c) strengthening the skills and capacities of duty-bearers and service providers; and (d) ensuring immediate benefits for the rights-holders.

The results reported here are limited to a maximum of six per country even though a country may have achieved more than six results. The UNFPA support is defined mainly as technical or financial support to a country. In some instances, however, the support is in the form of coordination.

CONTENTS

Arab States

- 9 Algeria 2023
- **10 Djibouti** 2023
- **11 Egypt** 2023
- **12** Iraq 2023
- **13 Jordan** 2023 **14 Lebanon** 2023
- 14Lebanon 202315Libya 2023
- **16 Morocco** 2023

- **17 Oman** 2023
- **18 Somalia** 2023
- **19 State of Palestine** 2023
- **20 Sudan** 2023
- **21** Syrian Arab Republic 2023
- **22 Tunisia** 2023
- **23 Yemen** 2023

Asia and the Pacific

- 25 Afghanistan 2023
- **26 Bangladesh** 2023
- **27 Bhutan** 2023
- **28 Cambodia** 2023
- **29 China** 2023
- **30 Democratic People's Republic of Korea** 2023
- 31
 India 2023

 32
 Indonesia 2
- 32 Indonesia 202333 Islamic Republic of Iran 2023
- 34Lao People's Democratic Republic 2023
- **35 Maldives** 2023

- **36 Mongolia** 2023
- **37 Myanmar** 2023
- **38 Nepal** 2023
- **39 Pacific Sub-Regional Office** 2023
- 40 Pakistan 2023
- **41 Papua New Guinea** 2023
- **42 Philippines** 2023
- **43 Sri Lanka** 2023
- **44 Thailand** 2023
- **45 Timor-Leste** 2023
- **46 Viet Nam** 2023

Eastern Europe and Central Asia

- **48 Albania** 2023
- **49 Armenia** 2023
- **50 Azerbaijan** 2023
- **51 Belarus** 2023
- **52 Bosnia and Herzegovina** 2023
- **53 Georgia** 2023
- 54 Kazakhstan 2023
- **55 Kosovo** 2023
- 56 Kyrgyzstan 2023

- **57 North Macedonia** 2023
- **58 Republic of Moldova** 2023
- **59 Serbia** 2023
- 60 Tajikistan 2023
- 61 Türkiye 2023
- **62 Turkmenistan** 2023
- **63 Ukraine** 2023
- 64 Uzbekistan 2023

24

47

8

EAST AND SOUTHERN AFRICA

- **66 Angola** 2023
- **67 Botswana** 2023
- **68 Burundi** 2023
- **69 Comoros** 2023
- 70 Democratic Republic of the Congo 2023
- **71 Eritrea** 2023
- **72 Eswatini** 2023
- **73 Ethiopia** 2023
- **74 Kenya** 2023
- **75 Lesotho** 2023
- 76 Madagascar 2023

- **77 Malawi** 2023
- **78 Mauritius** 2023
- 79 Mozambique 2023
- **80 Namibia** 2023
- **81 Rwanda** 2023
- 82 South Africa 202383 South Sudan 2023
- **84 Uganda** 2023
- 85 United Republic of Tanzania 2023
- **86 Zambia** 2023
- **87 Zimbabwe** 2023

Latin America and the Caribbean

- **89 Argentina** 2023
- 90 Bolivia (Plurinational State of) 2023
- 91 Brazil 2023
- 92 Caribbean Sub-Regional Office 2023
- **93 Chile** 2023
- **94 Colombia** 2023
- **95 Costa Rica** 2023
- 96 Cuba 2023
- **97 Dominican Republic** 2023
- **98 Ecuador** 2023
- **99 El Salvador** 2023

- **100 Guatemala** 2023
- 101 Haiti 2023
- **102 Honduras** 2023
- **103 Mexico** 2023
- **104 Nicaragua** 2023
- **105 Panama** 2023
- **106 Paraguay** 2023
- **107 Peru** 2023
- **108 Uruguay** 2023
- **109 Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)** 2023

West and Central Africa

- **111 Benin** 2023
- **112 Burkina Faso** 2023
- **113 Cabo Verde** 2023
- **114 Cameroon** 2023
- **115 Central African Republic 2023**
- **116 Chad** 2023
- 117 Congo 2023
- **118 Côte D'Ivoire** 2023
- **119 Equatorial Guinea** 2023
- **120 Gabon** 2023
- 121 Gambia 2023
- **122 Ghana** 2023

- 123 Guinea 2023
- 124 Guinea-Bissau 2023
- **125 Liberia** 2023
- 126 Mali 2023
- **127 Mauritania** 2023
- **128 Niger** 2023
- **129 Nigeria** 2023
- **130 Sao Tome and Principe** 2023
- 131 Senegal 2023
- **132 Sierra Leone** 2023
- **133 Togo** 2023

88

110

ARAB STATES

Algeria Djibouti Egypt Iraq Jordan Lebanon Libya Morocco Oman Somalia State of Palestine Sudan Syrian Arab Republic Tunisia Yemen

ALGERIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Algeria, visit https://algeria. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

The civil registration and vital statistics system was scaled up, extending the registration of births and deaths to six more districts

RESULT 1

The use of digital platforms for the maternal death audit system was expanded to 32 districts

RESULT 2

Capacity was developed at 30 district-level departments of the Ministry of Health on use of the clinical management framework for women survivors of violence

RESULT 3

© UNFPA ALGERIA

10 NEGALIE

RESULT 4

The national sexual and reproductive health data system was digitized

Family and social mediation capacities of 40 per cent of the Ministry of Solidarity district level units were improved

The quality and accessibility of indicator data for the Sustainable Development Goals was enhanced, making data readily available on the website of the National Statistical Office

RESULT 6



DJIBOUTI 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Djibouti, visit https://djibouti. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1	RESULT 2	RESULT 3
The first one stop gender- based violence centre in the country was launched at the Balbala Hospital	The pilot phase of the 3rd General Population and Housing Census was implemented by the Institute of Statistics of Djibouti	The first electronic logistic management information system in health structures was operationalized, strengthening capacities of 47 health service providers in the management of logistics
RESULT 4	RESULT 5	RESULT 6
A national strategy for accelerating the reduction of maternal and neonatal mortality 2022–2026 was developed and operationalized	The first national strategy to address gender-based violence was developed	The health system in Djibouti was reformed by strengthening the institutional capacities for offering sexual and reproductive health services

EGYPT 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Egypt, visit https://egypt. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Over 7,300 girls were empowered through social, health and economic assets

The safe women clinics model, which offers comprehensive medical care and psychological and counselling services, was expanded to reach a total of 15 university hospitals

RESULT 2

Capacities were strengthened for 253 medical service providers to offer comprehensive violence against women case management, protection services and referrals as part of improving the medical response to gender-based violence in the public health sector

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

3,581 women and girls survivors of violence accessed specialized services offered through the national services

RESULT 5

A unified curriculum was developed for medical students in universities for the elimination of female genital mutilation



An investment case was developed that determined the cost of ending the unmet need for family planning by 2030 and related benefits, serving as an important advocacy tool for increasing public investment and promoting private financing partnerships

IRAQ 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Iraq, visit https://iraq. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A population policy was developed with the support from UNFPA

RESULT 2

A national family planning costed action plan was developed jointly with the Ministry of Health to strengthen access to rights-based family planning with a focus on young people and vulnerable groups A maternity intensive care unit was established at the Aldiwanya Maternity Hospital, benefiting over 227,000 individuals in 2023 who previously had limited access to such services

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Ten reproductive health clinics were strengthened to deliver essential sexual and reproductive health services to refugees and internally displaced persons residing in 10 different camps. The clinics served over 1,905 individuals in 2023

RESULT 5

A national behaviour change communication strategy and action plan was developed to enhance reproductive health literacy and service update among women and girls

RESULT 6

=

Around 11,900 young people benefited from life skills, citizenship education and other youth programmes designed to prevent violent extremism

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

SUMMARY

JORDAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Jordan, visit https://jordan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Results of the first-ever needs assessment on emergency obstetric and newborn care (EmONC) were published, providing evidence on the current availability, utilization and quality of EmONC services in the country RESULT 2

A Youth, Peace and Security (YPS) unit was established within the Ministry of Youth More than 321,700 women, adolescents and youth, including those with disabilities, benefited from quality sexual and reproductive health and genderbased violence prevention and response services

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

UNFPA supported integrating cash assistance into gender-based violence case management, reaching 288 individuals. Analysis of the 2022 cash and voucher assistance data showed that 93 per cent of women reported that cash assistance mitigated immediate gender-based violence risks and 88 per cent reported that the cash assistance increased their access to urgent genderbased violence services RESULT 5

Over 53,000 women and girls benefited from gender-based violence prevention and response services

RESULT 6

Comprehensive, high-quality sexual and reproductive health services were provided at Zaatari camp through three clinics. Each month, approximately 5,000 people received services, including an average of four safe deliveries a day. Since opening in August 2013, the maternity clinic has overseen more than 17,000 safe deliveries with no maternal newborn deaths reported as of December 2023

LEBANON 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Lebanon, visit https://lebanon. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

The Commission on Lebanese Women developed a National Strategy for Women 2022– 2030, which is the main policy instrument for gender equality and women empowerment

RESULT 1

UNFPA LEBANON



A national strategy for persons with disabilities was developed

RESULT 3

A maternal mortality report for 2020–2022 was launched

RESULT 4

in the country

Standard operating procedures were developed to improve clinical management of rape services in Lebanon

RESULT 5

A framework on adolescent and youth sexual and reproductive health was introduced as a tracking tool that provides policymakers with a road map with relevant interventions

A menstrual hygiene management guidance was introduced

SUMMARY

LIBYA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Libya, visit https://libya. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Pre-service, post-nursing and Bachelor of Science in midwifery curricula and lesson plans were developed, in addition to a national nursing and midwifery regulatory framework to assist the National Health Council and Midwifery Council in regulating nursing and midwifery services

RESULT 2

A pool of family planning master trainers was introduced to roll out family planning services in public health facilities In the aftermath of cyclone-like Storm Daniel, Libya updated the common operational dataset for population statistics. The dataset was used as the main source of data to estimate the size of the affected population and the number of people in need of humanitarian assistance in the country

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Over 73,000 vulnerable people, including 7,561 internally displaced people, benefited from high-quality sexual and reproductive health services

RESULT 5

The UNFPA mentorship programme expanded to 23 health facilities and supported the services of 194 midwives to improve the quality of midwifery care in primary health-care facilities and empower midwives in tertiary hospitals

RESULT 6

A mental health learning resource package was developed to train specialized groups of nurses in the provision of critical mental health services

MOROCCO 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Morocco, visit https://morocco. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA MORO

A new 2024 census methodology based on digitalization was developed by the Haut-Commissariat au Plan A new national strategy for the elimination of preventable maternal deaths 2023–2027 was operationalized through regional action plans

RESULT 2

RESULT 3

A new master's degree in "leadership and management in sexual and reproductive health" was launched, attached to one of the leading nursing institutes

RESULT 4

An operational plan for sexual and reproductive health in prisons was elaborated by UNFPA, in collaboration with the General Delegation for Penitentiary Administration and with the support from the Ministry of Health

RESULT 5

The National School for Public Health launched an e-learning course on the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) for sexual and reproductive health in crisis situations

RESULT 6

The Arab Youth Charter was launched as a youth initiative conducted in collaboration with the Ministry of Youth, Culture and Communication, aimed at strengthening advocacy efforts to ensure youth participation in the development, implementation and evaluation of public policies

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

OMAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Oman, visit https://oman. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) report for Bahrain was launched. Sexual and reproductive health and rights issues, including the rights to access information and services and comprehensive sexuality education, were highlighted in the report RESULT 2

A cervical cancer study was initiated with the World Health Organization and the Ministry of Health of Oman to assess the prevalence and genotypes of human papilloma virus (HPV) infection among Omani women The Ministry of Health of Oman launched the National Non-Communicable Diseases Forum in 2023

RESULT 3



© UNFPA OMAN

SOMALIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Somalia, visit https://somalia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

An obstetric fistula national strategy was launched, focused on eliminating all obstetric fistula in Somalia RESULT 2

A national family planning plan 2023–2028 was developed for the first time, along with a reproductive health commodity security road map RESULT 3

A new midwifery strategy was developed at national level. UNFPA also launched a sexual and reproductive health and rights mobile application in the Somali language, aimed at promoting the utilization of midwifery provision services in Somalia

Ē

RESULT 4

Around 410,000 people utilized different integrated sexual and reproductive health services including in the humanitarian settings

RESULT 5

The Somaliland government launched the National Development Plan (NDPIII) 2023 – 2027, which integrates sexual and reproductive health and population dynamics

RESULT 6

Census regulations for the Somali Population and Housing Census were endorsed by the Census Core technical team. This document provides a legal basis for undertaking the Somali Population and Housing Census at national and state levels

© UNFPA STATE OF PALESTINE

STATE OF PALESTINE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Palestine, visit https://palestine. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

UNFPA and partners delivered life-saving medicines and equipment that supported more than half of the births – 21,000 – in Gaza since war began on 7 October

RESULT 2

In 2023, 972 youth (436 females, 536 males) were engaged in and participated in the decision-making mechanisms in Youth, Peace and Security (YPS) initiatives RESULT 3

The Palestinian Higher Council of Youth and Sport developed the National Youth Strategy (2024–2029)

RESULT 4

Over 182,000 women, adolescents and youth, including people with disabilities, received highquality services related to sexual and reproductive health, prevention and protection from gender-based violence

RESULT 5

The national gender-based violence referral pathway system was updated

UNFPA chaired the genderbased violence sub-cluster at national level in Gaza and in the West Bank, and also led the sexual and reproductive health working group in Gaza

SUDAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Sudan, visit https://sudan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1	RESULT 2	RESULT 3
Over 333,000 people benefited from sexual and reproductive health services in 2023	Over 18,300 women and girls benefited from dignity kits in Geneina and Armada, West Darfur and Kassala, Central Darfur, North Darfur, Gedarif, Red Sea, White Nile and Blue Nile locations	108 community midwives in five states, including the midwives working in humanitarian locations, improved their knowledge and skills through in-service training using the updated in-service training curriculum
RESULT 4	RESULT 5	RESULT 6
1,822 cases of obstetric fistula were repaired	Over 9,400 individuals from key populations in the targeted states were reached with the human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention package, and more than 8,000 individuals from key populations were tested for HIV and received their results	Over 250,000 women and girls in host communities and internally displaced and refugee settings benefited from gender-based violence support services in 2023. In addition, 54 Women and Girls Safe Spaces were established in the country

SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Syria, visit https://syria. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A climate change toolkit was developed and green initiatives were supported through youth programming, taking an approach that emphasized the role of youth in contributing to climate action and sustainability

RESULT 2

A network of trained psychosocial support service providers was established to respond to the needs of gender-based violence survivors A gender equality plan was endorsed by the Government

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Over 180 service delivery points were strengthened with a comprehensive range of sexual and reproductive health services and information dissemination, benefiting more than one million women and girls

RESULT 5

Over 665,400 women and girls benefited from genderbased violence prevention and response services through collaborative efforts with 20 nongovernmental organizations

RESULT 6

530 communities across 14 governorates benefited from a comprehensive approach that ensured the availability of high-quality reproductive health services without stigma and discrimination

TUNISIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Tunisia, visit https://tunisia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA TUNISIA

126 midwives were trained on "Ethics culture and reflective practice for improved sexual and reproductive health services" RESULT 2

A national Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) readiness assessment was conducted. The findings informed a preliminary national action plan for MISP preparation A harmonized framework for sexual and reproductive health youth-friendly services was developed

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

UNFPA supported the provision of gender-based violence care services through seven safe spaces/shelters for 1,091 women survivors of violence

RESULT 5

The national review report on International Conference on Population and Development (ICPD) commitment implementation in Tunisia was made available, in anticipation of the regional conference for the sixth review of the ICPD Programme of Action

RESULT 6

Ξ

The National Statistics Institute georeferenced database was reviewed and updated to improve the quality and accuracy of the database

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

YEMEN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Yemen, visit https://yemen. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A Midwifery Strategy and a Maternal Neonatal Health Strategy was launched to reduce maternal and neonatal mortality in Yemen



RESULT 2

Over 108,500 survivors of gender-based violence were provided with case management services, including psychosocial support, medical, legal and cash assistance, in 19 targeted governorates

RESULT 3

© UNFPA YEMEN / Alaa Nomar

116,964 safe deliveries were assisted

RESULT 4

Over 290,793 people benefited with specialized mental health services, and eight specialized mental health centres were strengthened in 2023

RESULT 5

Over 1,229,600 people benefited from reproductive health services, and approximately 95 health facilities were improved to deliver reproductive health services

RESULT 6

=

300 individuals completed preservice training and on-the-job training for midwives

ASIA AND THE PACIFIC

- Afghanistan Bangladesh Bhutan Cambodia China Democratic People's Republic of Korea India
- Indonesia Islamic Republic of Iran Lao People's Democratic Republic Malaysia Maldives Mongolia Myanmar Nepal
- Pakistan Papua New Guinea Philippines Sri Lanka Pacific Sub-Regional Office Thailand Timor-Leste Viet Nam

AFGHANISTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Afghanistan, visit https://afghanistan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Over 2.25 million people benefited from maternal and reproductive health services through 435 midwifery-led family health houses established with the support of UNFPA

RESULT 2

Over 4.3 million beneficiaries were reached with sexual and reproductive health services through 200 mobile health teams supported by UNFPA

RESULT 3

277 service providers, including 157 women, were trained to improve the delivery of quality services in the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP), and an additional 1,483 women front-line workers were trained to provide quality psychosocial support counselling and services

RESULT 4

Over 1.68 million women and girls received psychosocial support counselling and services through 78 Women Friendly Health Spaces and 46 psychosocial support counselling centres in 29 provinces

RESULT 5

Around 273,000 young people were reached with integrated youth-friendly services including pre-marriage counselling from 114 health service delivery points strengthened with UNFPA support

RESULT 6

Around 150,000 young people received adolescent and youthfriendly reproductive health information, counselling and referral services through a youth healthline

BANGLADESH 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Bangladesh, visit https://bangladesh. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA BANGL Fahima Tajr<mark>in</mark>

> The first ever Bangladesh National Family Planning Strategy (2023–2030) was developed by the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare

RESULT 2

District Action Plans to end child marriage were developed and endorsed by four districts. The development of the action plans was guided by the National Action Plan to End Child Marriage A tailored Comprehensive Sexuality Education Curriculum for out-of-school adolescent girls was developed, including components for married adolescent girls

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

With support from UNFPA and Dalarna University, a master's programme in midwifery was developed. Two nursing colleges have been approved to start the master's programme in 2025

RESULT 5

In collaboration with the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, a national guideline addressing son preference and genderbiased sex selection was developed and shared RESULT 6

The Ministry of Health integrated the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) into the 5th Health Sector Operational Plan

BHUTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Bhutan, visit https://bhutan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The national policy on prevention and response to sexual violence was developed An integrated national reproductive maternal neonatal child and adolescent health strategy was developed with inputs from the World Health Organization and UNICEF

RESULT 2

The pre-service training curriculum for midwives was updated to include mental health topics in the antenatal, postnatal and perinatal programme

RESULT 3

© UNFPA BHUTAN

RESULT 4

The Senior Citizen Policy was launched RESULT 5

A training package on standardized social messaging to prevent and address gender-based violence and issues related to sexual and reproductive health and rights was developed and disseminated through mask dances during the Druk Gi Tsechu Garcham Gi Sheba festival A virtual learning education platform to undertake a comprehensive sexuality education course in the local language was developed and made available for undergraduate and postgraduate students taking national language course in two colleges (Paro and Taktse)

RESULT 6

NEXT PAGE

PREVIOUS PAGE

SUMMARY

CAMBODIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Cambodia, visit https:// cambodia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA CAMBODIA

Health sector response to gender-based violence was improved through development and implementation of service delivery standards guidelines; 887 genderbased violence survivors benefitted from the services

RESULT 2

The Cambodia Strategic Framework and Action Plan 2024–2030 for the Implementation of the ICPD National Voluntary Commitments was developed, outlining a clear roadmap for national policy and programmatic actions

RESULT 3

The Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport operationalized the national curriculum on health education and comprehensive sexuality education in 433 lower secondary schools across eight target provinces, enhancing the capacity of the education system to deliver essential life skills education to school-based young people. In addition, 48,300 users registered in the Ministry's "Youth Health" mobile app launched by MOEYS

RESULT 4

The National Maternal and Child Health Centre of the Ministry of Health updated the family planning guidelines, protocols and training materials to incorporate ICPD25 national commitments and human rights-based principles, ensuring that 341 health-care providers are well-equipped to deliver high-quality, rights-based family planning services

RESULT 5

Ensuring that no one is left behind, 10,075 Female Entertainment Workers (FEWs) were provided with information about human rightsbased family planning and other essential sexual and reproductive health services, enabling 480 FEWs to receive related health services. More than 1,500 FEWs registered in the national social protection schemes, ensuring their access to broader social protection and health benefits

RESULT 6

Cambodia rolled out a new competency-based curriculum for an associate's degree in midwifery in all six targeted public midwifery schools, thereby enhancing the quality of midwifery education and ensuring that future midwives are well-prepared to provide high-standard maternal and newborn care

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

CHINA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA China, visit https://china. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The Manual for Sexual and Reproductive Health Services in Emergency Situations was introduced



Through a successful collaboration between UNFPA Country Offices, 23 health workers from Sierra Leone received training from a maternal and child health hospital in China to use artificial intelligence (AI) technology in screening for cervical cancer A domestic network of 200 comprehensive sexuality education (CSE) practitioners was established to implement global CSE standards in China

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Sexual and reproductive health knowledge and skills of 10,052 students was enhanced through the comprehensive sexuality education live-streaming project RESULT 5

124 teachers and relevant authorities from the schools were trained as trainers to scale up the quality reach of comprehensive sexuality education

RESULT 6

Ξ

A youth network for Chinese and Mongolian young people was initiated as a platform for capacity-building opportunities with a focus on the ICPD Programme of Action and UNFPA's three transformative results

DEMOCRATIC PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF KOREA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Democratic People's Republic of Korea, visit

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The capacity of 652 health-care providers was strengthened directly, and 1,788 indirectly, on critical sexual and reproductive health areas RESULT 2

Updated technical manual and service delivery guides were distributed and utilized by the primary health-care facilities in all provincial/county hospitals in the country A population projection was produced that the United Nat

RESULT 3

produced that the United Nations used for resource mobilization to implement humanitarian response plans

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

INDIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA India, visit https://india. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Family Planning 2030 roadmaps for Odisha and Rajasthan were developed to fulfil India's FP2030 goals in these states



RESULT 2

The innovative Al-driven chatbot, "Just Ask!" was launched in the State of Madhya Pradesh to engage and educate young people on sexual and reproductive health, garnering 23,000 users within four months 12 priority districts characterized by difficult geographies and a challenging socio-cultural milieu experienced marked improvements. Over 88 per cent of their facilities offer at least five reversible contraceptive methods and safe delivery services; 43 per cent of these health facilities provide comprehensive sexual and reproductive health services

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

The India Ageing Report 2023 with the theme of "Caring for our Elders: Institutional Responses" was jointly released by UNFPA and the Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment



A gender cell at the Rajasthan Police Academy was established, enabling regular gender sensitization of police personnel and expanded crosssectoral coordination

RESULT 6

769 adolescent-friendly health clinics were established across focal states, benefiting over 1.1 million adolescents

INDONESIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Indonesia, visit https://indonesia unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Maternal and perinatal death surveillance and response systems were piloted in six hospitals serving as a national model for using maternal and perinatal death audits for pointof-care quality improvement

RESULT 2

The Adolescent Reproductive Health education modules of junior high schools and schools for students with disabilities were updated RESULT 3

Ministerial Regulation No. 46/2023 concerning the Prevention and Handling of Violence in the Education Unit Environment was passed by the Minister of Education. It serves as a legal umbrella for everyone involved in the education system, to prevent and respond to sexual violence and bullying

RESULT 4

Guidelines for Service Providers were developed, addressing gender-based violence and prevention of sexual exploitation and abuse



The National Master Plans in Indonesia successfully incorporated population dynamics analysis, which led to a more comprehensive understanding of the country's demographic trends RESULT 6

Comprehensive population projections and analyses from 2020 to 2050 were produced and made widely available

ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF IRAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Islamic Republic of Iran, visit https://iran. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Over 11,100 adolescent girls and boys in selected deprived provinces benefited from post-COVID-19 mental health support, and 6,660 girls and boys received school kits, allowing for enhanced educational recovery and reintegration back to school

RESULT 2

The Statistical Centre of Iran was equipped with essential technology infrastructure, establishing the system's backbone as a critical first step in preparing for the transition to a register-based census in 2026 Older people and people with disabilities living in deprived provinces enjoyed better hearing and social inclusion through 1,000 hearing aids delivered to State Welfare Organization's centres

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Over 4,900 vulnerable women and girls in the Sistan and Baluchestan Province benefited from improved sexual and reproductive health through distribution of 48,000 sanitary napkin packages along with awareness-raising sessions on sexual and reproductive health

RESULT 5

23 maternity wards in Sistan and Baluchistan provinces and 19 medical universities countrywide were strengthened with the provision of maternal health equipment

RESULT 6

40 women centres and 226 voluntary counselling and testing centres were equipped with essential commodities and HIV diagnostic kits © UNFPA LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC

LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Lao People's Democratic Republic, visit https://lao. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A revised midwifery curriculum for higher education was endorsed, leading to the International Accreditation from International Confederation of Midwives (ICM). Technical/ clinic midwives members of the Lao Association of Midwives increased 17 per cent, from 1,389 in 2022 to 1,620 in 2023



The Department of Hygiene and Health Promotion finalized the guideline for pre-marriage couple counselling. The Department of Healthcare and Rehabilitation finalized the national standards for health facilities providing adolescent and youthfriendly services RESULT 3

The country's first dedicated legislation focusing on young adolescents, the "Law on Young Pioneers", was endorsed.

RESULT 4

The country's first gender-based violence one-stop service unit based in a hospital was established, along with a Health Assistance Hotline (#1527)

RESULT 5

The National University of Laos and UNFPA launched a report on the country's first Preliminary Findings on Technology-Facilitated Gender-Based Violence

RESULT 6

The National Transfer Account (NTA) network was established to initiate the first NTA report in 2025

MALDIVES 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Maldives, visit https://maldives. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Life skills-based reproductive health education was institutionalized by development of a curriculum to reach out-ofschool young people

RESULT 2

National gender-based violence case management guidelines were updated with a survivorcentred approach in accordance with global best practices and procedures A voluntary national survey to monitor the ICPD30 was developed utilizing census results

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

A policy brief addressing low fertility in the Maldives was developed

RESULT 5

A framework for monitoring and evaluating the costed Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn, Child and Adolescent Health Strategy was developed

RESULT 6

Comprehensive guidelines and a referral mechanism for health sector response to gender-based violence were developed in line with the essential services package for women and girls subject to violence

MONGOLIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Mongolia, visit https://mongolia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

22 rural and urban districts were equipped with a teleconferencing package, bridging the gap for the most marginalized groups to access high-quality sexual and reproductive health services RESULT 2

The Ministry of Health approved the core competencies of Midwives (Health Minister's order A/451) that were aligned with the recommendations of the International Confederation of Midwives RESULT 3

A men's psychosocial counselling and information centre was established to offer psychosocial counselling. Since its inception in May 2023, the centre has provided information sessions, psychological counselling and couples counselling to over 200 individuals and 22 couples

RESULT 4

With the support of UNFPA, the Government evaluated the implementation of the Law on Combating Domestic Violence and its standard operating procedures. Key recommendations include developing a comprehensive joint action plan for gender-based violence prevention and response, and strengthening coordination among relevant laws

RESULT 5

The Government approved the violence-free school policy (order A/453), a landmark development towards ensuring safer learning environments in schools

RESULT 6

In collaboration with UNICEF, UNFPA advocated for merging health and educational strategies, resulting in the enactment of clause 28.10 in the education law, paving the way for a school-based student health monitoring system

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

MYANMAR 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Myanmar, visit https://myanmar. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

An electronic logistics management information system (e-LMIS) was established and operationalized in 834 clinics/health facilities across 166 townships in 16 states/ regions, remarkably improving health-care logistics and information management



A context-sensitive harmonized comprehensive sexuality education curriculum was finalized for out-of-school young

18,243 older persons and persons with disabilities benefited from social protection services and received cash and voucher assistance

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Gender-based violence case management standard operating procedures, guidelines for safe houses, and a guidance note on engaging men and boys in mental health and psychosocial support interventions were developed



people aged 15-24

A mental health and psychosocial support strategy was developed. UNFPA continued to lead interagency coordination around gender-based violence and mental health and psychosocial support (MHPSS) RESULT 6

Over 146,800 women and girls benefited through UNFPA supported sexual and reproductive health services

NEPAL 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Nepal, visit https://nepal. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Lamsal

Dhan

The National Statistics Office released the main census results. UNFPA also supported the development of census data visualization platforms RESULT 2

To improve midwifery education, proficiency certificate-level in midwifery and three-year direct entry midwifery programmes were introduced in Nepal

RESULT 3

Four provincial level policy instruments to end child marriage were adopted in Koshi Province, Madhesh Province, Lumbini Province and Sudurpaschim Province

RESULT 4

The Government developed a cervical cancer standard operating procedure at the federal level for screening and orientation guideline, which is being rolled out to select municipalities and hospitals in Nepal

RESULT 5

Over 8,000 adolescents in schools benefited through the rolling out of the Rupantaran life skills programme

RESULT 6

A review of ICPD was conducted, including a voluntary national survey to assess Nepal's commitments. The review process culminated with the National Declaration that was presented at the Seventh Asian and Pacific Population Conference

PACIFIC SUB-REGIONAL OFFICE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Pacific Sub-Regional Office, visit https://pacific. unfpa.org

A Cervical Cancer Elimination Policy and Strategy for the Pacific Island Countries of Samoa, Tonga and Solomons Islands was developed by Te Puna Vai Marama in collaboration with UNFPA

RESULT 1



Kiribati, Samoa and Tonga finalized and accredited a midwiferv curriculum

Key Results Achieved in 2023

The anticipatory action (AA) pilot for tropical cyclones was launched in Fiji. The UNFPA AA proactive support model aims to support the protection of women and girls from sexual and reproductive health and gender-based violence risks by focusing on pre-positioned supplies and targeted communication

RESULT 3

before cyclones hit

RESULT 4

In Kiribati, 25 stakeholders were trained on the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) for sexual and reproductive health in crisis settings. An action plan was also developed prioritizing the reactivation of disaster councils. In addition, MISP readiness assessments were completed in the Solomons Islands, the Republic of Marshall Islands and the Federated States of Micronesia to identify gaps and plan for preparedness



RESULT 5

In Fiji, the Ministry of Health and Medical Services introduced the Maternal and Perinatal Death Surveillance and Response system

RESULT 6

Five Women and Girls Friendly Spaces were established in Vanuatu to enhance community resilience building in response to and recovery from the cyclones

PAKISTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Pakistan, visit https://pakistan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The Pakistan Nursing Council Act was amended to reform the Pakistan Nursing and Midwifery Council RESULT 2

UNFPA, in partnership with the Ministry of Law and Justice, launched the Sexual Violence Response Framework, a comprehensive compendium of actions for responses to incidents of sexual violence, aiming at prevention, protection, prosecution and rehabilitation RESULT 3

The successful pilot of the Conditional Cash Voucher model in four districts improved access to sexual and reproductive health services for marginalized women

RESULT 4

National Clinical Protocols were finalized for emergency obstetric and newborn care that will enhance the capacity for lifesaving health-care services

RESULT 5

National commitments on family planning and reproductive health were reflected in the Islamabad Declaration 2023, which was developed as an outcome to the national conference "Resilient Pakistan: Calibrating Population and Resources"

RESULT 6

Following comprehensive assessments and collaborations across Pakistan, a life skills-based Education Strategy Roadmap was developed for out-of-school adolescents and youth to inform future interventions

© UNFPA PAPUA NEW GUINEA

PAPUA NEW GUINEA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Papua New Guinea, visit https:// png.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The National Youth Policy, National Population Policy and Family Planning policy were updated RESULT 2

Over 180 health service providers strengthened their capacity on supply chain management, inventory management, quantification, ordering and reporting

RESULT 3

The first population projections were developed for 2024– 2050, disaggregated by province, age and sex

RESULT 4

The first report on National Transfer Accounts, Provincial Demographic Dividend and Population Situation Analysis was developed RESULT 5

The out-of-school comprehensive sexuality education curriculum was completed and over 8,300 youth across the target provinces benefited from outof-school youth engagement activities and services

The "bilum campaign" was spearheaded to harness traditional culture to advance gender equality and bodily autonomy in partnership with key stakeholders. The campaign highlighted how the women of Papua New Guinea contributed significantly to safeguarding important cultural traditions, especially those that mark the status and life of women

PHILIPPINES 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Philippines, visit https:// philippines. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1	RESULT 2	RESULT 3
The Family Planning Costed Implementation Plan was updated	209,541 teachers received training in comprehensive sexuality education and subsequently reached over 1,144,800 in-school learners	A national population and development plan of action was developed by the National Economic and Development Authority and the Commission on Population and Development

RESULT 4

The Manual of Procedures for the Mobile Health Clinic (Mobile Health Clinic as a Primary Care Provider) was developed and endorsed by the Department of Health

RESULT 5

Gender-based violence response services to survivors were improved in five Crisis Intervention Units and Women's Crisis Centres in the provinces of Eastern Samar, Southern Leyte, Dinagat Islands and Surigao del Norte

RESULT 6

33 local government units integrated adolescent sexual reproductive health in their local development plans

SRI LANKA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Sri Lanka, visit https://srilanka. unfpa.org

RESULT 1

Cash and assistance was provided for 50,691 pregnant and lactating women, individuals with disabilities and women of femaleheaded households

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 2

A Youth Wellness Centre of the Faculty of Arts, University of Colombo, was established to provide a comprehensive package of services to undergraduates in the fields of nutritional health, psychosocial counselling, sexual and reproductive health information, products and services, referrals for prevention and response to gender-based violence, food security and other related services that support wellness and continuity of quality education

RESULT 3

A National Bereavement Care Package was developed. This comprehensive guideline offers evidence-based care pathways, providing crucial guidance to professionals involved in delivering bereavement care to parents and families

RESULT 4

The capacities of 1,827 health staff were strengthened in key areas, including HPV DNA testing, cervical cancer testing, the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP), mental health and psychosocial support, emergency obstetric and newborn care, and supply chain management



The Maternal and Neonatal Health Information System was established in three districts – Batticaloa, Kandy and Puttalam – and serves as a critical tool for tracking changes in maternal health levels and coverage

RESULT 6

A National Policy on Gender Equality and Women's Empowerment was launched. The policy provides overarching guidance for national entities and civil societies working on advancing the rights of women, girls and marginalized communities

THAILAND 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Thailand, visit https://thailand. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

50 planners and policy makers for Population and Development were equipped on National Transfer Accounts, and prepared for inclusive census data collection methods including hybrid census

RESULT 2

A gender-based violence protocol standard was updated and submitted for government endorsement, and is ready to be shared to the One Stop Crisis Centres under the Ministry of Public Health

RESULT 3

A digital platform for social issues impacting women and girls, Line@SoSafe, was launched and piloted in five provinces nationwide – focusing on family planning, sexual and reproductive health, prevention of gender-based violence and social support

RESULT 4

A rights-based fertility policy was developed in line with the national social strategy on the impact of demographic transitions with the aged population

RESULT 5

Thailand-led good practices on preventable maternal mortality, adolescent reproductive health, and population and development were conducted under South-South cooperation for Indonesia, Malaysia, the Philippines, Timor-Leste and Viet Nam

RESULT 6

The Thailand Child and Youth Council (TCYC) revised and adopted the SRHR youth advocate tool, I-D-Sign, in its youth leadership training programme, integrating HIV and other STIs and the sexual and reproductive health and rights of LGBTIQ+ youths

TIMOR-LESTE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Timor-Leste, visit https://timorleste.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A five-year (2024-2028) National Strategic Plan of the National AIDS Institute was introduced, underlining the importance of leaving no one behind and reaching key populations per Timor-Leste's Strategic Development Plan 2011-2030



RESULT 2

Family planning logistic management information system tools were developed to collect family planning service and supplies information

Supply chain management guidelines and a training package were developed and utilized

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

The 2022 National Population and Housing Census was released, followed by the development of thematic reports on fertility, mortality, population projections and migration, as well as education, children and youth, and gender, among others

RESULT 5

Provision of comprehensive sexuality education in schools was approved for seven municipalities, based on a request advocated by UNFPA



Some 12,000 people benefited from HIV testing services, surpassing the 2023 target agreed upon with the Global Fund and the Ministry of Health of Timor-Leste. The project detected 46 HIV-positive cases in 2023, all of which were referred to HIV treatment services

VIET NAM 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Viet Nam, visit https://vietnam. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

National guidelines on sexual and reproductive health and rights for people with disabilities were introduced, along with scaled-up maternal health interventions in six ethnic minority provinces RESULT 2

Decree No 76 dated 1 November 2023 guiding the implementation of the Domestic Violence Prevention and Control Law was approved by the Prime Minister RESULT 3

The training curriculum for social workers, including a module on the provision of social services for survivors for gender-based violence, was approved

RESULT 4

The comprehensive sexuality education and life skills education guideline for teachers was updated with a component on disabilities

RESULT 5

Sunshine Houses and a tollfree hotline provided support services to nearly 9,800 people, including women and girls subjected to violence

RESULT 6

The National Transfer Accounts study was conducted. The results of this study revealed that Viet Nam has moved from the first demographic dividend to a second demographic dividend, which requires more active interventions in economic, health and education policies

EASTERN EUROPE AND CENTRAL ASIA

Albania Armenia Azerbaijan Belarus Bosnia and Herzegovina Georgia Kazakhstan Kosovo¹ Kyrgyzstan North Macedonia Republic of Moldova Serbia Tajikistan Türkiye Turkmenistan Ukraine Uzbekistan

References to Kosovo shall be understood to be in the context of Security Council resolution 1244

ALBANIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Albania, visit https://albania. unfpa.org

Key Resul	ts Achieved	in 2023

RESULT 1

7,900 women have benefited from human papillomavirus tests at the national level, which play a crucial role in cervical cancer prevention



A reproductive health law was developed

The Action Plan on Prevention, Treatment and Reduction of Drug Harm in Albania was developed

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Comprehensive sexuality education implementation reached 85 per cent coverage of schools nation-wide compared with 70 per cent in 2021 RESULT 5

The All Parties Parliamentary Group on Population and Development was formally established in July 2023 with the main purpose to address population-related issues and policies Five municipalities engaged in piloting the model of active aging centres for older people

RESULT 6

ARMENIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Armenia, visit https://armenia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

Image: Description of the second se

RESULT 4

As a result of a joint initiative led by UNFPA in partnership with UNICEF, UNESCO and the World Food Programme, about 8,500 students (4,100 girls and 4,400 boys), including students with disabilities, acquired knowledge and skills to make informed health-related choices through the "Healthy Lifestyle" school curricula in the pilot Tavush region

RESULT 5

244 health-care providers and 105 rescuers benefited from training in the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) that enabled them to provide quality and life-saving sexual and reproductive health services during emergency situations

RESULT 6

Armenia finalized the third Population and Housing Census

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

SUMMARY

AZERBAIJAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Azerbaijan, visit https://azerbaijan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Medical protocols governing family planning and perinatal care were comprehensively updated, drawing on the latest guidance and recommendations of the World Health Organization and the European Union

RESULT 2

National accreditation standards for social work case management in gender-based violence cases were developed UNFPA continued focusing on tackling discriminatory social norms via its support to the Papa Schools. As a result, 333 young fathers and fathers-tobe benefited from them in 10 regions of Azerbaijan

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

HPV testing was piloted in three southern regions of Azerbaijan

Family planning, prevention of cervical cancer, antenatal care and reproductive health in emergencies packages were added to the national health insurance plans adding up to 50 services in total

RESULT 5

RESULT 6

Population projections findings for Azerbaijan through 2050 were launched

BELARUS 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Belarus, visit https://belarus. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

UNFPA in collaboration with national partner "MamaPro" launched the mobile application of the online resource for information on pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and more RESULT 2

Over 65,000 women were covered via the new national cervical cancer screening programme

RESULT 3

Guidelines on response to gender-based violence were developed jointly with the Ministry Labour and Social Protection and UNFPA

RESULT 4

The network of the Parent-Friendly Companies expanded to 20 companies, benefiting over 10,000 employees, as a result of leveraged and scaled up advocacy and awareness efforts on social and economic benefits of involved fatherhood and advancing gender equality in the workplace

RESULT 5

In strengthening demographic resilience, an Information Strategy for Active Aging (IS 65+), which aims to change the image of older people, was approved by the government

RESULT 6

Over 12,000 women, older persons and persons with disabilities benefited from domestic violence and genderbased violence prevention and protection interventions

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Bosnia and Herzegovina, visit https://ba.unfpa.org © UNFPA BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

To improve quality maternal health care, new Guidelines on Safe Delivery were developed both in Republika Srpska and in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

RESULT 2

4,100 young people were reached with HPV vaccination Women and girls, including gender-based violence survivors, improved their coping mechanisms, resilience and self-esteem through 2,132 specialized, targeted and age-appropriate gender-based violence mental health and psychosocial support services (MHPSS). In addition, provision of 1,059 psychosocial services helped male gender-based violence survivors improve their capacity and resilience to cope with symptoms related to traumatic experiences

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

A new law on domestic violence and the protection of women and girls in Republika Srpska was formulated



The Population Development Strategy of the City of Banja Luka was finalized, serving as an important step in building demographic resilience to tackle emigration and low fertility issues

RESULT 6

The capacity of 183 frontline workers was strengthened to address gender-based violence in crisis situations and support survivors of gender-based violence

GEORGIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Georgia, visit https://georgia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The antenatal care regionalization process was advanced through the assessment of over 70 antenatal care facilities for designation of the appropriate level of care in line with the antenatal care regionalization principles. As a result, a foundation was created for improving the quality of antenatal care processes

A States



Five municipalities (Abasha, Akhaltsikhe, Martvili, Poti and Zugdidi) updated local gender equality action plans to integrate relevant measures for the elimination of child marriage and gender-biased sex selection as a result of capacity-building interventions covering 15 municipalities

RESULT 3

In collaboration with the Ministry of Health and Information Technology Agency and the National Centre for Disease Control, UNFPA supported the introduction of new service delivery approaches, such as telemedicine in the sexual and reproductive health field, specifically for antenatal care and family planning

RESULT 4

As of 2023, the Unified Cancer Screening Information System is fully operational: 105 medical facilities, representing around 80 per cent of all cervical cancer screening providers countrywide (15 per cent growth compared with 2022), are actively reporting to the registry

RESULT 5

Four HIV prevention standards with costing tools were developed in accordance with the newly developed World Health Organization guidelines

RESULT 6

The newly adopted National Action Plan on Human Rights Protection reflects the ICPD agenda, including relevant measures that contribute to ending gender-based violence and harmful practices

KAZAKHSTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Kazakhstan, visit https:// kazakhstan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Three additional types of contraceptives (emergency contraceptives, hormonal and intrauterine devices) were added into the Kazakhstan National Pharmaceutical Formulary (order No 103, dated 6 June 2023).

RESULT 2

As a result of the technical expertise provided by the UNFPA, the new Standard for Youth Friendly Health Centres to improve the quality of services was endorsed by the Ministry of Health as a legislative act 9,090 young people have been reached by Y-PEER volunteers on sexual and reproductive health, gender, gender-based violence, harmful social norms and stereotypes issues to increase knowledge among adolescents

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

at the undergraduate and

medical care to survivors

of gender-based violence

and hearing disabilities)

was approved by the

Academic Council

(including people with vision

residency levels to provide

The medical education curricula

RESULT 5

40 specialists of the Spiritual Administration of Muslims of Kazakhstan and Madrasah from nine regions of Kazakhstan enhanced capacity to provide psychological support services to Muslim women survivors of violence

RESULT 6

The Population and Housing Census data was published and disseminated by the Bureau of National Statistics

KOSOVO 2023²

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Kosovo, visit https://kosovo. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A costed National Action Plan on Maternal, Child and Reproductive Health was developed for the period 2023–2025 RESULT 2

A number of clinical guidelines on normal delivery, cesarean section, management and treatment of sexual violence, and fetal echocardiography were developed, representing a significant advancement in the enhancement of health-care standards and practices related to sexual and reproductive health

RESULT 3

The Ministry of Health included the human papillomavirus vaccine in its national vaccination programme. Starting from 2024, all girls aged 11–13 (sixth grade) will receive the vaccine as part of the regular vaccination schedule nationwide

RESULT 4

Prishtina's primary healthcare system developed and approved a guideline clearly defining the services, pathway and other technical aspects for providing health care to survivors of gender-based violence

RESULT 5

At the request of the Ministry of Youth, Culture and Sports, UNFPA supported the evaluation of the Youth Strategy 2019–2023. The evaluation findings and recommendations informed the development of the first-of-its-kind long-term National Youth Strategy, 2024–2032, together with its first threeyear action plan. The strategy focuses on increasing the skills of young people, and the promotion of their well-being, health and safety

RESULT 6

A significant increase of 14.5 per cent in the number of teachers, totaling 324 teachers, were equipped with enhanced skills and knowledge to deliver comprehensive sexuality education effectively

References to Kosovo shall be understood to be in the context of Security Council resolution 1244

© UNFPA KYRGYZSTAN / Kanat Kubatbekov

KYRGYZSTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Kyrgyzstan, visit https:// kyrgyzstan. unfpa.org



Regulations on the organization of public health services for sexual and reproductive health for youth and adolescents at all levels

of health care were approved

by the Ministry of Health

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 2

A state-guaranteed benefits package on provision of medical and sanitary support to the citizens within universal health coverage-related programmes was revised and approved by the government. It guarantees essential health care entitlements, formalizes co-payments for specific services and tests, and defines benefits for exemption for specific target groups, including pregnant women during care before, during and after childbirth regardless of insurance status; newborns; youth to age 16 and elderly people

RESULT 3

A gender-based violence data portal was created by the National Statistics Committee

RESULT 4

Two methodological courses for teachers and health-care providers and students of educational institutions focusing on health were approved, institutionalizing 24 mandatory credit hours to improve provision of the first psychological aid to women with reproductive losses and practical and clinical provision of sexual violence-related services in emergency situations

RESULT 5

A curriculum on the provision of integrated sexual and reproductive health and HIV services to key populations and people living with HIV was institutionalized by the Kyrgyz Medical Institute for Continuous Education

RESULT 6

A Youth Advisory Board was established for the 2023–2025 period to increase the level and quality of youth participation in planning and monitoring of United Nations programmes and processes. The Board empowers young people to benefit from gender-equitable norms and exercise their full reproductive rights in a safe and enabling environment, including in humanitarian and development context. The new body was established as a result of the collaboration between UNFPA and UNICEF and leadership of the United Nations Resident Coordinator's Office

NORTH MACEDONIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA North Macedonia, visit https:// northmacedonia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The Guidebook on Sexual and Reproductive Health was revised to meet the specific needs of persons with disabilities RESULT 2

In 2023, over 66,000 women who had not received screening in the past three years were screened for cervical cancer through the national Cervical Cancer Screening Programme. This constitutes about a seven-fold increase compared with 2022, when only 7,481 women were screened RESULT 3

The National Youth Strategy 2023–2027 and its Action Plan for 2024–2025 were endorsed

RESULT 4

RESULT 5

A new Protocol for Multi-Sectoral Response to Violence Against Women/Domestic Violence was adopted by the Ministry of Labour and Social Policy A gender-based violence information management system was validated by the Ministry of Labour and Social Policy and the National Coordination Body for monitoring the implementation of the Istanbul Convention

RESULT 6

Over 27,500 people were reached through the @bodyright campaign about technology facilitated gender-based violence (TfGBV). The Bodyright Glossary of TfGBV was adapted, translated into the Macedonian language and adapted to the local context to raise awareness of this growing threat

REPUBLIC OF MOLDOVA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Republic of Moldova, visit https://moldova. unfpa.org

NOE ATNUT

© UNFPA REPUBLIC OF MOLDOVA / Siegfried Modola

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Coverage with cervical screening services increased to 62 per cent in 2023 compared with 40 per cent in 2022 as a result of improved referral mechanisms through the establishment of the network of 12 colposcopy offices throughout the country

RESULT 2

The National Health Strategy "Health 2030" was developed in 2023, prioritizing sexual and reproductive health interventions RESULT 3

The National Programme on Preventing and Combating Violence against Women and Domestic Violence for 2023–2027 and the National Programme on Healthy and Active Ageing for 2023–2027 were launched

RESULT 4

An interoperability platform of administrative data on population, migration and social services was put in place with other data holders, strengthening the national statistical system

RESULT 5

The education curricula "Decision for a Healthy Lifestyle" was aligned with international standards on comprehensive sexuality education, and 88,000 young people were reached with civic engagement and life skills education programmes

RESULT 6

Over 33,000 refugees and host communities (women, youth and older persons, including people with disabilities and people from the Roma population) benefited through the functioning of 11 mobile and 22 static safe spaces, which provided psychosocial support, legal counselling, referrals to gender-based violence services for the GBV survivors and individuals at-risk of gender-based violence

SERBIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Serbia, visit https://serbia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA SERBIA

A new comprehensive strategy for preserving and improving reproductive health 2024– 2030 was developed

RESULT 2

During the 3rd Forum of the Alliance, held in Tbilisi 28 and 29 September, national representatives supported adoption of a Call to Action, confirming Serbia's commitment to end preventable cervical cancer morbidity

RESULT 3

A new Youth Strategy for the period 2023–2030 was adopted. An Action Plan 2023–2025 was developed for the first three years of implementation of the Youth Strategy through a broad participatory consultative process led by the Ministry of Tourism and Youth

RESULT 4

A Handbook on Mental Health, social well-being and healthy lifestyle was developed in line with the priority of the Ministry of Tourism and Youth to improve the mental health, life skills and well-being of young people. The handbook provides young people, youth workers and coordinators of the local youth offices with information, essential skills and practical guidance to enhance their daily efforts to strengthen capacities of all relevant stakeholders in this area through the partnership between UNFPA and the Psychosocial Innovation Network

RESULT 5

The Strategy for Active and Healthy Aging, 2024–2030 with its accompanying first Action Plan, 2024–2026, were adopted under the leadership of the Ministry of Family Welfare and Demography and technical support of the UNFPA

RESULT 6

A partnership between the Commissioner for Protection of Equality and UNFPA was established to protect against diverse forms of discrimination, including digital discrimination related to ageism. This strategic alliance focuses on equality, particularly within social groups that face an elevated risk of discrimination, and serves as a catalyst to accelerate efforts to foster a more inclusive and equitable society

TAJIKISTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Tajikistan, visit https://tajikistan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The second costed National Reproductive Health Programme applicable until 2027 was launched. A dedicated coordination unit was established to oversee and coordinate the implementation of the programme for the period 2023–2027

RESULT 2

A protocol on cervical cancer prevention developed

RESULT 3

The Ministry of Health and Social Protection under partnership with the UNFPA institutionalized new modern methods of contraception through integrating them into the national protocols and standards. The capacity of 65 sexual and reproductive health specialists nationwide was strengthened to provide services relating to these new family planning methods

RESULT 4

350 obstetricians and gynecologists, midwives and neonatologists enhanced their skills in implementing effective perinatal care programmes, national standards on emergency obstetric care and maternal death surveillance, and response and antenatal care

RESULT 5

National guidelines on addressing gender-based violence in emergencies were developed in line with the international Inter-Agency Standing Committee standards. The newly adopted guidelines introduced integrated measures to respond to gender-based violence in humanitarian and emergency situations

RESULT 6

For the first time, the unified electronic administrative database system was established for regular collection of gender-based violence and harmful practice data, with unified and common indicators used across all relevant government agencies. The data will be used to inform and propose evidence-based policy that can address violence against women and girls

TÜRKIYE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Türkiye, visit https://turkiye. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Yasin Güngör

© UNFPA Τἱ

Over 101,100 refugees and members of host communities in humanitarian settings – including earthquake survivors – benefited from sexual and reproductive health services through UNFPA-supported service delivery centres RESULT 2

Over 111,200 refugees and members of host communities in humanitarian settings – including earthquake survivors – benefited from essential gender-based violence response services provided through UNFPAsupported service centres RESULT 3

Nationally-representative youth research was completed in 2023, after the first such research in 2007. This is the only nationally representative source on youth sexual and reproductive health needs in the country

RESULT 4

The UNFPA-supported Business Against Domestic Violence Network members reached 110 large (top 500) companies

RESULT 5

23,000 people were reached through in-person household and shop visits of UNFPA health mediators in four provinces with highest rates of child, early and forced marriage RESULT 6

Digital sexual and reproductive health education platforms supported by UNFPA reached approximately 225,000 young people in 2023

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

TURKMENISTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Turkmenistan, visit https://turkmenistan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Cervical cancer screening was rolled out in all regions and Ashgabat for women aged 29–55 for early detection to reduce morbidity and extend survival rates. More than 300 cervical cancer deaths were averted in 2023 owing to timely and adequate treatment

RESULT 2

65 per cent in the target group of 881,000 women countrywide have been covered by the cervical cancer screening programme to detect disease at early stages, thus reducing morbidity and mortality rates Over 200 professionals from diverse sectors increased their capacity in psychological counselling for survivors of gender-based violence

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Timely preliminary results of the 2022 National Population and Housing Census were released

RESULT 5

Modules focusing on domestic violence and male attitudes towards violence against women were included in the Multiple Indicator Cluster Survey

RESULT 6

An assessment of Business Processes on Birth and Death Registration was completed, providing recommendations that could enhance the quality and accessibility of the Civil Registration and Vital Statistics services

UKRAINE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Ukraine, visit https://ukraine. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

UNFPA-supported services provided live-saving gender-based violence assistance to over 360,000 vulnerable women and girls through 109 Psychosocial Mobile Teams, a national gender-based violence hotline, a network of gender-based violence specialized services, 11 Survivor Relief Centres, 29 Women and Girls Safe Spaces known as "Vilna" and other means. As of November 2023, the National Police registered almost 244,000 cases of domestic violence RESULT 2

The cash assistance programme for gender-based violence survivors via case management was scaled up in 2023 – benefitting 65 to 100 women each month

RESULT 3

29,440 people received assistance at the network of 11 UNFPA-supported Survivor Relief Centres, which support survivors of war, including those who have experienced conflictrelated sexual violence, through a unique model of support services

RESULT 4

75 schools in 21 regions of Ukraine introduced social-emotional and ethical learning (SEEL) that involves offline training and intensive mentorship support, contributing to the psychological wellbeing of educators and students during times of war. Individual implementation plans have been developed for each school, and students will be equipped with resilience and soft skills to prevent genderbased violence RESULT 5

Over 48,000 women benefited from dignity kits between March 2022 and December 2023

RESULT 6

Under the joint partnership of UNFPA, UNDP and the Ministry of Youth and Sports of Ukraine, the evidence from the research on "The Impact of War on Youth in Ukraine" that covered over 3,000 young Ukrainians, both within the country and displaced abroad, informed the development of evidence-based youthfocused programmes by United Nations agencies, government bodies and youth organizations

© UNFPA TURKMENISTAN / Ene Tuyliyev

UZBEKISTAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Uzbekistan, visit https://uzbekistan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A confidential inquiry into maternal deaths was conducted, and the findings were used by the Ministry of Health to improve quality of service, train medical staff and stock necessary supplies RESULT 2

Access to contraceptives was boosted by a fivefold increase in the State budget allocation for their procurement. UNFPA offered tools that were critical for forecasting the demand for contraceptives RESULT 3

Over 2,700 teachers in Karakalpakstan acquired, through the training of school/ pre-diploma teachers and updated curricula at Karakalpak State University, increased capacity in delivering sexual and reproductive health and rights education

```
RESULT 4
```

Over 235 service providers from the ministries and other state institutions increased knowledge on the quality of response to gender-based violence, including to women with disabilities. For the first time, disability inclusion was integrated into the standard operating procedures on genderbased violence multi-sectoral response to women and girls

RESULT 5

The country's road map for cervical cancer prevention, which introduces the human papillomavirus test as a primary screening method, and the World Health Organization joint pilot project in the Republic of Karakalpakstan and Chirchik City were developed

RESULT 6

National population projections were produced, informing the formulation of evidence-based country education, health, labour market and urbanization policies

EAST AND SOUTHERN AFRICA

Angola Botswana Burundi Comoros Democratic Republic of the Congo Eritrea Eswatini Ethiopia Kenya Lesotho Madagascar Malawi Mauritius Mozambique Namibia Rwanda South Africa South Sudan United Republic of Tanzania Uganda Zambia Zimbabwe

ANGOLA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Angola, visit https://angola. unfpa.org

RESULT 1

The Action Plan for implementation of the National Strategy to Combat Unintended Pregnancy and Child Marriage was approved

Key Results Achieved in 2023

The use of technology and innovation in delivering sexual and reproductive health and rights information and services was enhanced through support to the "Drones For Health" project

More than 300,000 adolescent girls and boys in 930 primary and secondary public schools benefited from sexuality education in 2023

RESULT 3

RESULT 4 RESULT 5 The Strategic Plan for the The Action Plan for the Integral Development of Youth implementation of the national 2023-2027 was endorsed Strategy to Combat Unintended Pregnancies and Child Marriage was developed

239 social mobilizers and 930 school gender focal points were trained on adolescent sexual and reproductive health

RESULT 6

RESULT 2

BOTSWANA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Botswana, visit https:// botswana.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The capacity of six priority districts to integrate the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) for sexual and reproductive health in crisis situations into the district disaster preparedness and response plans was strengthened RESULT 2

A business model for the "Drones for Health" project was developed that informs stakeholder investment into the project. The project aims to intergrate drones into the supply of reproductive health products in Botswana to reach those left furthest behind

RESULT 3

Data from the 2022 Population and Housing was validated in 2023 by key stakeholders

E NEXT PAGE

PREVIOUS PAGE

SUMMARY

BURUNDI 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Burundi, visit https://burundi. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

35.7 per cent of the 112 health facilities in the emergency obstetric and newborn care network provided all the signal functions for the management of emergency obstetric and neonatal complications in 2023 compared with 19.6 per cent in 2022 RESULT 2

By procuring contraceptives, an estimated 210,000 unplanned pregnancies and 54,000 unsafe abortions were averted during 2023 Over 694,900 students in school received basic sex education adapted to their age thanks to the integration of the subject into curricula

RESULT 3

© UNFPA BURUNDI

COMOROS 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Comoros, visit https://comoros. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA COMOROS

Two maternity wards were rehabilitated and equipped to handle obstetric emergencies, and 12 maternity wards were furnished with equipment for safe childbirth



Around 53 per cent of secondary and tertiary service delivery points provided at least five modern family-planning methods available, meeting the target set for 2023 RESULT 3

The National Population Policy was developed in 2023, aiming to capture the demographic dividend

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF THE CONGO 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Democratic Republic of the Congo, visit https:// drc.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

38 maternities and operating theaters in referral health facilities were rehabilitated and equipped RESULT 2

1,000 fistula cases were repaired

The Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) was introduced into the national strategy for HIV and AIDS, and the law on the regulation of the midwifery profession was enacted

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Eight midwifery training institutions integrated the reconversion programme for nurses to midwives, and 155 midwives were trained on humanitarian preparedness and response

A national reparations fund for survivors of sexual violence in conflicts and survivors of serious crimes was established

ERITREA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Eritrea, visit https://eritrea. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 2

RESULT 1

1,878 women received obstetric fistula treatment

Integration of activity related to female genital mutilation (FGM) during the second and third postnatal home visits was provided to 8,824 mothers (49 per cent) of the total of 18,008 postnatal attendees. During home visits, FGM counselling services were included as a key factor and mothers were informed about the linkages between FGM and sexual and reproductive health RESULT 3

600 adolescents and disadvantaged girls participated in life skills education on social interpersonal interaction, health, building self-confidence and how one acquires skills to be selfsupporting in life, including with minimum economic support

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

ESWATINI 2023

1

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Eswatini, visit https://eswatini. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The national gender policy and the national strategy on ending violence were launched To enhance the provision of quality maternal health services, a "Safe Delivery" application was operationalized as a pilot project. A total of over 300 midwives and doctors were using the application by the end of 2023

RESULT 2

The roll-out of life skills education for out-of-school youth was strengthened, reaching 1,312 young people with training using the refresher training manual

RESULT 3

© UNFPA ESWATINI

RESULT 4

70 midwives from Maternal Neonatal and Child Health departments at the national referral and one regional hospital received training on how to respond to obstetric emergencies in order to reduce maternal and neonatal mortality and morbidity

RESULT 5

Population projections at national and regional levels were made available

RESULT 6

Over 30,700 adolescents received sexual and reproductive health and rights information through the "TuneMe" app

ETHIOPIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Ethiopia, visit https://ethiopia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA ETHIOPIA / Paula Seijo

A seven-year (2024–2030) Costed Implementation Plan for the National Family Planning Programme was developed RESULT 2

The electronic logistic management information system was expanded in 237 health facilities and the family planning service quality standards were implemented in 246 health facilities RESULT 3

581 girls and 372 women received fistula and pelvic organ prolapse repairs

RESULT 4

218 health facilities were equipped with emergency obstetric and newborn care (EmNOC) equipment and supplies to improve quality service provision and strengthen the humanitariandevelopment nexus

RESULT 5

As a result of the integration of cervical cancer screening into the university hospital, a significant number of women and girls gained access to this vital service. 5,678 girls and women received cervical cancer screening from hospitals at Arsi, Gondar and Jimma universities and the hospital catchment areas

RESULT 6

Eight UNFPA shelters/safe houses and five one-stop centres were supported and strengthened to provide standard and comprehensive services for survivors of gender-based violence. Some 19,409 survivors of gender-based violence in all settings received comprehensive services in 2023 as per the National Protocol at these shelters/safe houses

KENYA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Kenya, visit https://kenya. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The third generation of the County Integrated Development Plans Guidelines was released, integrating population issues The 2022 Demographic Health Survey report was finalized and launched, providing up-to-date estimates of socioeconomic, demographic, health and nutrition indicators

RESULT 2

Over 2.5 million people benefited from the commodities distributed through 6,000 health facilities across the 47 counties

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

In Samburu and West Pokot counties, 1,545 students benefited from life skills information on the prevention of female genital mutilation and child marriage. The pupils were further provided with solar lanterns donated by UNFPA in partnership with Panasonic Company to help improve student school performance

RESULT 5

UNFPA, the Government of Kenya and other partners launched the scale-up of the worlds' first Adolescent Sexual Reproductive Health Impact Bond in Kenya aimed at increasing access to and uptake of sexual reproductive health and HIV services among vulnerable adolescent girls between the ages of 15–19 years in 10 counties in Kenya. The US\$ 10.2 million investment will reach at least 300,000 adolescent girls over two years

RESULT 6

279 teachers and heads of schools were equipped with the capacity and relevant tools to deliver sexual and reproductive health, gender-based violence and life skills education. A total of 387,976 adolescents and youth, including those with disabilities, were reached with information and services that promote their health and well-being

LESOTHO 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Lesotho, visit https://lesotho. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The number of clients accepting long-acting reversible contraceptives for family planning steadily increased, reaching 5,866 in 2023. This could be attributed to the training of Nursing Assistants that was carried out during the second quarter of 2023



The Ministry of Health with the support of UNFPA and the Wor

support of UNFPA and the World Health Organization continued to undertake maternal death audits, which provide insights about maternal deaths in Lesotho and the major causes of death, which include haemorrhage, hypertension and sepsis

RESULT 3

A roll-out plan to support the implementation of the Counter Domestic Violence Act was developed and 60 police officers from the Child, Gender and Protection Units, 10 magistrates and 10 prosecutors and local court presidents were trained to roll out the law in their respective duty stations across the country

RESULT 4

A national system to collect and disseminate disaggregated data on both the incidence and prevalence of gender-based violence was established

RESULT 5

Lesotho introduced a logistics management information system that will replace the manual system for forecasting, quantification and tracking of sexual and reproductive health commodity stock status

© UNFPA MADAGASCAR

MADAGASCAR 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Madagascar, visit https://madagascar. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

The second-generation National Strategy for the Development of Statistics was finalized



1,230 patients had their obstetric fistulas successfully repaired

2,233,247 women and families were regular users of modern contraceptive methods

RESULT 3

RESULT 4	RESULT 5	RESULT 6
15,228 normal deliveries were carried out by midwives contracted by UNFPA	Over 27,000 survivors of gender-based violence received psychosocial and legal support through the operationalization of 31 Legal Listening and Advice Centres and Integrated Support Centres	5,697 people received delivery kits in humanitarian settings

MALAWI 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Malawi, visit https://malawi. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1 RESULT 2 RESULT 3 In collaboration with the Over 304,500 additional women A National Youth Policy and Ministry of Health and the of reproductive age were using a Youth Investment Plan Freedom From Fistula modern family planning methods were developed Foundation, a total of 289 from the health facilities cases of obstetric fistula were repaired, exceeding the target of 200 **RESULT 4 RESULT 6 RESULT 5**

In collaboration with the Ministry of Health, the Youth-friendly Health Strategy 2022–2030 was finalized and approved by the Secretary for Health. The strategy identifies young people's multi-sectoral needs, rights and necessary reproductive healthrelated health skills A new Population Policy was mainstreamed in the district development plans, and the council-level budgeting processes will be based on population size Over 142,800 survivors of genderbased violence (girls and young women) accessed essential services in six target districts

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

MAURITIUS 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Mauritius, visit https://mauritius. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A National Adolescent Health Strategy was developed Census data was operationalized through a number of thematic analyses that are critical to informing policy change. For example, the household survey and data analysis influenced the decision to increase the minimum wage by 40 per cent

RESULT 2

With UNFPA support, the Ministry of Gender and Family Welfare developed a roadmap to establish a Gender-Based Violence Information Management System for the country

RESULT 3



© UNFPA MOZAMBIQUE / Mbuto Machili

MOZAMBIQUE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Mozambique, visit https://mozambique. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Two Women and Girls Support Spaces were established, providing comprehensive services to over 63,900 women and girls RESULT 2

The Programa Geração Biz National Strategy (2023–2033) was developed. The strategy will guide the planning, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of all adolescent and youth sexual and reproductive health initiatives in Mozambique

RESULT 3

The National Health Institute, the Ministry of Health, and the National Statistics Institute jointly released the preliminary report of the Demographic and Health Survey 2022–2023

RESULT 4

Mobile clinics and brigades were deployed to hard-to-access regions of Cabo Delgado, Nampula and Niassa provinces provided vital services, reaching 36,530 women aged 15–49 with antenatal and postnatal care, family planning and sexual health information

RESULT 5

UNFPA equipped more than 20 health facilities affected by conflict and natural disasters in Zambezia, Cabo Delgado, Nampula and Niassa with reproductive health kits, medical-surgical equipment and essential supplies

RESULT 6

122 (77 female and 45 male) health-care and service providers acquired increased skills and knowledge on the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) for sexual and reproductive health in crisis situations

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

NAMIBIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Namibia, visit https://namibia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

In collaboration with UNESCO and higher learning institutions, 553 pre-service teachers and nurses were trained in comprehensive sexuality education



Over 18,100 young people benefited from integrated sexual and reproductive health services RESULT 3

Over 1,800 survivors of sexual and gender-based violence accessed the essential services packages, including psychosocial support, across regions including Erongo, Kavango East, Kavango West, Khomas, Omaheke and Zambezi

RESULT 4

UNFPA was mentioned in 85 articles in print media in Namibia, with an increasing number about UNFPA not only around events but as a reference and thought leader on matters of sexual and reproductive health and rights

RESULT 5

A Population and Housing Census was conducted after years of postponement

RWANDA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Rwanda, visit https://rwanda. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Findings from the Service Delivery Points Survey undertaken in 2022 were disseminated. The survey found that 76 per cent of service delivery points were had no stock-outs of three modern methods RESULT 2

Overall, 33 health centres out of 61 provided youth-friendly services as per national standards

RESULT 3

37,489 adolescents and young people aged 10–24 were empowered to access sexual and reproductive health and rights information and services in refugee settings

RESULT 4

9,046 teachers received both online (1,723) and on-site (7,323) teacher training in comprehensive sexuality education (CSE) in 2023, increasing their capacity to deliver quality CSE in line with the national education curricula. Consequently, the number of schools implementing CSE according to the National Education Curricula increased to 84.3 per cent

RESULT 5

The Civil Registration and Vital Statistics system was fully digitalized and decentralized to include the birth and death registration at health facility level

RESULT 6

The National Obstetric Fistula Management Guidelines and the Maternity Care Policy were developed

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

SUMMARY

SOUTH AFRICA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA South Africa, visit https:// southafrica. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

All three provinces developed plans and advocacy materials for prevention and response to gender-based violence



RESULT 2

The 2022 Population and Housing Census was successfully conducted, and its results were released in October 2023. The census was 100 per cent digital for the first time, with three multimode options of data collection

RESULT 3

South Africa submitted the Progress Review of the Implementation of the Programme of Action of the International Conference on Population and Development (1994) and the report on the Addis Ababa Declaration on Population and Development in Africa beyond 2014 (2013)

RESULT 4

A total of 77,718 young people were reached with social behaviour change communication messaging through innovative social media platforms including Facebook, Twitter and community radio stations



Over 1.2 million adolescents and youth, including those in furthest left behind groups, in **UNFPA-supported provinces** utilized integrated sexual and reproductive health, genderbased violence and HIV prevention services

SOUTH SUDAN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA South Sudan, visit https:// southsudan. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

UNFPA strengthened the capacity of the Drugs and Food Control Authority to enhance its medication regulatory functions particularly with regard to the medication registration processes, including commodity dossier review



An electronic logistics management information system was developed

RESULT 3

A Disability Inclusion Strategy and Action Plan was jointly designed by the networks of persons with disability and the Government of South Sudan, the Ministry of Gender, Child and Social Welfare

RESULT 4

A Male Engagement Strategy was developed by the Ministry of Gender, Child and Social Welfare, Ministry of Health and community groups

RESULT 5

102 Community Action Groups (CAGs) were established to create a social safety net for gender-based violence survivors, reflecting increasing interest among the community leaders and members to be part of the CAGs

RESULT 6

Two national surveys were conducted: the Population Estimation Survey and the Violence Against Women and Men Prevalence Survey. The population estimation survey, including its thematic reports, will provide much-needed information to inform population-based decisions by the government, development actors and humanitarian organizations

UGANDA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Uganda, visit https://uganda. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Local Maternity and Neonatal Systems of West Nile and Acholi sub regions were operationalized to strengthen regional accountability as well as advocacy for maternal and newborn health RESULT 2

A National Emergency Obstetric and Newborn Care (EmONC) needs assessment was conducted. The findings shed light on the availability, access and utilization of quality EmONC services in Uganda, and will inform future action to improv' the quality of services RESULT 3

To strengthen the policy and legal environment under which midwives and nurses in Uganda operate, a first-ever Nurses and Midwives Scope of Practice was developed. It was approved and launched during the celebration of Uganda's 100 years of Nursing and Midwifery regulation

```
RESULT 4
                                                                                     RESULT 6
                                             RESULT 5
The Ministry of Health launched
                                     Over 2.5 million young
                                                                            Availability of contraceptives
the National Obstetric Fistula
                                     people accessed sexual and
                                                                            was maintained at a high level:
Strategy (2020/21 - 2024/25)
                                     reproductive health services in
                                                                            85.9 per cent of primary service
                                     UNFPA-supported districts
                                                                            delivery points reports no stock-
                                                                            outs of contraceptives in the
                                                                            last three months
```

© MAGNUM PHOTOS FOR UNFPA / Sabiha Çimen

UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA United Republic of Tanzania, visit https://tanzania. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A Nursing and Midwifery Strategic Plan (2024– 2029) was developed RESULT 2

National guidelines on menstrual health and hygiene were developed. The guideline and its tool kits are in the final stages, and the Ministry of Health will be conducting a pilot in 2024 RESULT 3

The Cabinet approved the Zanzibar Youth Policy in August 2023. The revised policy incorporated sexual and reproducdtive health and other emerging issues, such as innovation and climate change, to cater to the multi-faceted needs of youth

RESULT 4

The Ministry of Community Development, Gender, Women and Special Groups adopted the Women Development and Gender Policy and its implementation strategy

RESULT 5

A final draft of the new National Youth Development Policy for the mainland was produced RESULT 6

A Life Skills Manual for Out-of-School Youth was approved. The national capacity for life skills education targeting out-of-school youth was strengthened, with 78 national facilitators and 16,390 peer facilitators for life skills education trained

ZAMBIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Zambia, visit https://zambia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

In-service training was provided for 58 nurse-midwives who were later bonded to serve in underserved rural parts of the country RESULT 2

The Every Newborn Action Plan and Ending Preventable Maternal Mortality was developed 13,230 adolescent boys and girls aged 10 to 24 were reached by 294 comprehensive sexuality education out-of-school clubs with comprehensive adolescent sexual reproductive health information

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

A Sexual Reproductive Health and Rights policy and Youth Policy and Gender Policy were developed

RESULT 5

Over 9,100 gender-based violence survivors were reached with essential service packages in select districts 320 health-care workers received training in various areas including emergency obstetric and newborn care (EmNOC) and longacting reversible contraception

RESULT 6

Ę

ZIMBABWE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Zimbabwe, visit https://zimbabwe. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The National Genderbased Violence Strategy 2023–2030 was launched, providing a framework for prevention, mitigation and response



An electronic logistic management system was operationalized in 120 health facilities



RESULT 3

UNFPA supported the certification of facilities that offer the nine standards of youth-friendly services, and 43 facilities were certified in Chipinge and Chimanimani district during the fourth quarter of 2023. This gives a cumulative total of 481 facilities certified, which translate to 34 per cent of the total targeted facilities of 1,400

RESULT 4

Over 1.3 million youths received services from Youth Desks to access opportunities and services in Government Line Ministries. After noting that the implementation of Youth Desks in each Ministry varied, the Cabinet recommended that the Ministry of Youth review the Terms of Reference for the Youth Desks to ensure uniformity and clear guidelines for their operations RESULT 5

To strengthen the capacity of institutions to design and implement integrated, quality comprehensive sexuality education in schools, 4,000 "Fit for Life learners" books and an in-school CSE teacher training manual that integrates menstrual health management, climate change and mental health were produced and distributed, reaching over 140,000 learners with comprehensive and quality age-appropriate information on life skills, sexuality, HIV and AIDS

RESULT 6

Over 7,100 sexual violence survivors accessed health services and 1,944 reported sexual violence within 72 hours

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

SUMMARY

LATIN AMERICA AND THE CARIBBEAN

Argentina

Bolivia (Plurinational State of)

Brazil

Caribbean Sub-Regional Office

Chile

Colombia

Costa Rica

Cuba Dominican Republic Ecuador El Salvador Guatemala Haiti Honduras Mexico

Nicaragua

Panama

Paraguay

Peru

Uruguay

Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)

ARGENTINA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Argentina, visit https://argentina. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Argentina passed a Law known as the "Olimpia Law", which amends Law 26.485 (2009) on comprehensive protection to prevent, punish and eradicate violence against women by incorporating digital violence as a form of violence

RESULT 2

The educational community and authorities developed the first comprehensive sexuality education manual for the Province of Jujuy A number of national strategies were developed to implement comprehensive sexuality education (CSE) in formal and informal education settings, and 104 teachers were trained to operationalize CSE in school settings

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Networks of youth promoters were established with the support of UNFPA, UNAIDS and the Fundación Huésped. The networks aim to facilitate access to sexual and reproductive health in remote areas in two provinces

RESULT 5

Over 180 midwives in health centres in the priority provinces of the northeast and northwest were trained in providing contraceptive methods

RESULT 6

558 health team members from public institutions in the provinces of Chaco, Formosa, Catamarca, Salta, Córdoba and San Juan were trained to increase access to contraception counselling and contraception methods

BOLIVIA (PLURINATIONAL STATE OF) 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Bolivia, visit https://bolivia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Together with other allies, Departmental Law 1146 of Prevention of Adolescent Pregnancy was approved

RESULT 2 The knowledge and skills of 3,650

service providers and technical staff were strengthened to provide information, guidance and services related to comprehensive sexuality education, comprehensive care for survivors of sexual violence, contraception and obstetric and neonatal care

RESULT 3

The health commodities logistics management information system was strengthened by establishing baselines and defining an improvement plan for the storage and distribution of the Central Supply and health supplies for family planning commodities

RESULT 4

Capacity building on comprehensive sexuality education (CSE) was supported for 936 secondary school teachers through scholarships for two training cycles offered by the Bolivian Ministry of Education. CSE was incorporated in teaching programmes for 10,910 high school students in La Paz (Cotahuma), El Alto (5, 6 and 8 Districts), Cochabamba (South Zone) and Sacaba

RESULT 5

The Vice Ministry of Equal Opportunities and the Vice Ministry of Civil Defense developed five operational guidelines for the care and continuity of essential Gender Based Violence and Sexual and **Reproductive Health services** in emergency situations at the subnational level

RESULT 6

The National Statistics Office was supported in the experimental census in order to guarantee that the census complies with international recommendations

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

BRAZIL 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Brazil, visit https://brazil. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

Ξ **RESULT 1**

The federal government operationalized 10 long-acting reversible contraception reference centres



RESULT 2

Over 200 health service providers from the northern region of Brazil were trained on clinical management of sexual violence and the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP)

RESULT 3

UNFPA strengthened the Network of Black Women in the Northeast Region (Rede de Mulheres Negras do Nordeste) by expanding the debate on genderbased violence; developing communication, training and public advocacy actions in the nine states of the Northeast; and identifying racism as an aggravating factor for genderbased violence.

RESULT 4	RESULT 5	RESULT 6	
Data and evidence on violence against the transvestite and transsexual populations in Brazil was produced	Over 800 health service providers participated in training-of- trainers on the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) for sexual and reproductive health in crisis situations	Over 860 marginalized girls benefited with life skills programmes that build their health, social and economic assets	

CARIBBEAN SUB-REGIONAL OFFICE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Caribbean, visit https:// caribbean. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A Caribbean Model for Cultural and Behavioural Change was developed by UNFPA in partnership with the University of West Indies. A national Social and Behavioural Change Communications Strategy was developed in Belize, supplementing the national Gender Policy

RESULT 2

The logistics management information system was implemented in 30 out of the total of 36 pharmacies in Trinidad and Tobago. It improved the efficiency of the procurement and distribution process in health facilities, resulting in reduced instances of stock shortages

RESULT 3

Census data collection was completed in the Bahamas, Barbados, Belize, Grenada, St. Kitts and Nevis and Sint Maarten

RESULT 4

Policies for sexual and reproductive health and rights were formulated in several countries. The Programme of Action for Sexual, Reproductive, Maternal, Neonatal, Adolescent, and Child Health was developed in Trinidad and Tobago

RESULT 5

Development of adolescentfriendly standards based on international standards was initiated in four countries: Dominica, Grenada, St. Lucia and St. Vincent and the Grenadines

RESULT 6

The Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) was integrated into health policies, plans and strategies in Dominica, Grenada, St. Lucia, St. Vincent and the Grenadines, and Trinidad and Tobago. In Belize, UNFPA supported a new cohort of 15 trainers on MISP implementation

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

CHILE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Chile, visit https://chile. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

Arica Municipality adopted gender and international standards on protection and gender-based violence in its Protocol for Shelter Management to ensure spaces free of violence against women, girls and LGTBIQ+ communities RESULT 2

The National Survey of Health, Sexuality and Gender was conducted by the Ministry of Health Addressing gender-based violence was incorporated into the emergency plans of health and women's sectors in the Arica-Parinacota Region

RESULT 3

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

COLOMBIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Colombia, visit https://colombia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Maternal deaths were reduced by 43 per cent between 2022 and 2023 in the department of Chocó, historically with one of the highest maternal mortality rates in the country. The reduction in maternal mortality in Chocó accelerated due to the implementation of the National Acceleration Plan for the Reduction of Maternal Mortality (led by the Ministry of Health with the support of UNFPA), along with innovative subnational initiatives such as "Partera Vital"



RESULT 2

Over 3,400 women, with significant representation of indigenous (14.7 per cent), of African descent (14.6 per cent), migrant (65.9 per cent), LGBTIQ+ (221) and persons with disabilities (285) benefited from the services related to sexual and reproductive health as well as services related to gender-based violence prevention and care

RESULT 3

The capacity of 2,497 nursing professionals, 11 hospitals and 60 health delivery service points was strengthened in the delivery of family planning services

RESULT 4

Prevention and response to the gender-based violence capacities of 30 municipalities was strengthened RESULT 5

10 community organizations were strengthened for the prevention of female genital mutilation RESULT 6

A Population Situation analysis was conducted, leading to the updating of data related to the UNFPA three transformative results

COSTA RICA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Costa Rica, visit https://costarica. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A national report on the follow-up to the Montevideo Consensus on population and development was developed and presented by the Ministry of Planning and **Economic Policy**



The new National Policy on Aging and Old Age for the period 2023-2033 was launched

The national population projections were revised through a partnership between the **Central American Population** Center, the National Institute of Statistics and UNFPA

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

RESULT 5

110 health workers strengthened their capacities to implement prenatal and postnatal quality of care model The intercultural Agenda of Women of Talamanca was launched, including prevention and attention to violence, health, education, economic and cultural autonomy

Seven Civic Centres for Peace acquired knowledge and skills in facilitating comprehensive sexuality education in out-ofschool settings

RESULT 6

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE **SUMMARY**

CUBA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Cuba, visit https://cuba. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Sexual and reproductive health interventions such as comprehensive services for adolescents, intersectional and gender approaches, and progressive autonomy were incorporated in the approved Public Health Law and the Policy for the Comprehensive Care of Children, Adolescents and the Youth

RESULT 2

Sexual and reproductive health services, including the response to sexual violence, were revived in 29 health institutions (3 hospitals, 17 community health centres and 9 maternity waiting homes), in the nine municipalities of the Pinar del Rio and Artemisa provinces impacted by Hurricane Ian

RESULT 3

The Gender Equality Observatory was launched in 2023. The UNFPA contribution included improving data and indicators related to Goal 5 of the Sustainable Development Goals and capacity building for the implementation at the subnational level

RESULT 4

A UNFPA alliance with the Children's Television Programming Division of the National Television (Cubavision) was established to promote spaces for socializing, providing comprehensive sexuality education and encouraging the participation and creativity of pubescent girls and boys and adolescents

RESULT 5

A National System of Care policy was approved. This policy aligns with the national policy to address population dynamics and it includes relevant issues such as gender inequalities, adolescent pregnancies, people with disabilities and challenges related to ageing. In this regard, 325 individuals were trained to ensure the implementation of the National System

RESULT 6

1,087 health providers and decision makers were trained in emergency obstetrics, contraception and sexual and reproductive health standards for adolescents; 146,000 women and girls accessed contraceptives; 8,934 pregnant women and women in the postpartum period accessed medical supplies

© UNFPA DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Dominican Republic, visit https:// dominicanrepublic. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The National Policy for the Prevention of Unions and Pregnancies in Adolescents was developed RESULT 2

The Ministry of Public Health increased the budget for the purchase of contraceptives by 68 per cent, the largest increase since 2019

RESULT 5

The Logistics Support System for Medicines and Supplies was operationalized in nine regional warehouses and four highcomplexity hospital centres

RESULT 6

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

The National Population Census data was processed and validated More than 240 girls and adolescents between the ages of 12 and 15 were trained in the prevention of teenage pregnancies and early unions, and 114 boys received training on positive masculinities With UNFPA support and in coordination with ministries, judiciary and local authorities, 333 public servants acquired more knowledge and skills in responding to harmful practices against women and adolescent girls, especially in addressing early unions, teenage pregnancy, cyber violence and genderbased violence, including in humanitarian contexts

SUMMARY

97

ECUADOR 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Ecuador, visit https://ecuador. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA ECUADO

The Comprehensive Organic Law to Prevent and Eradicate Violence Against Women was implemented. In particular, a comprehensive strategy to promote changes in gender and social norms was supported at national and local levels RESULT 2

120 health and humanitarian response professionals, especially those from areas affected by the El Niño climate phenomenon, were trained in the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) RESULT 3

Plans for conducting the Population and Housing Census were drawn up

RESULT 4

The Gender Policy of the National Institute of Statistics and Census was developed RESULT 5

The National Comprehensive Sexuality Education Strategy was launched

RESULT 6

Sexual and reproductive health and gender-based violence policies were formulated and implemented, with production of implementation tools such as manuals for adolescent care, violence screening and prevention of obstetricgynecological violence

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

© UNFPA EL SALVADOR

EL SALVADOR 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA El Salvador, visit https://elsalvador. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A national alliance to reduce early motherhood named "Zero Pregnancies in Girls and Adolescents" was established, successfully engaging more than 40 partners from diverse sectors within the national landscape

RESULT 2

The Ministry of Health enhanced the regulatory frameworks and training, focusing on humanized care in childbirth and perinatal mental health, particularly at the primary care level. Capacities in applying obstetric emergency codes have been strengthened to provide more effective and respectful care, aiming to save lives

RESULT 3

The national regulatory framework for family planning was strengthened to support vulnerable populations, and long-acting contraceptive services were expanded in 11 municipalities with high teenage pregnancy rates

RESULT 4

The National Population Census Mapping was completed



Sexual and reproductive health services and gender-based violence care, psychological counselling and referrals were included in the over 5,000 services provided via mobile units

RESULT 6

The Code of Conduct for the prevention and response to cases of gender-based violence and trafficking in the tourism sector was developed

GUATEMALA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Guatemala, visit https:// guatemala. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A tool was developed for capturing, processing and analysing information on the quality of standards for comprehensive health care for adolescents and young people

RESULT 4

RESULT 2

A plan for the prevention of pregnancies in adolescents and prevention of early and forced child marriage was launched in nine municipalities with the highest rates of early unions and pregnancies in girls and adolescents

RESULT 3

An evaluation of obstetric emergency care capacity across 36 health facilities in five departments was conducted. The information is being used to update maps with sociodemographic data, national coverage indicators for services, and available programmes for maternal and neonatal health care, informing targeted interventions to improve capacity and service delivery in areas with identified needs

Youth participation was positioned in the electoral process as actors to prevent conflict and promote a culture of peace, through the strengthening of the Supreme Electoral Court and youth organizations. More than 3,000 young people participated in the largest observation missions in the country's history

RESULT 5

The first national survey of household quality and welfare was conducted, providing information on the magnitude and impact of violence against women in the country

RESULT 6

A tool for maternal mortality data collection and analysis was developed and institutionalized, empowering the National Maternal Death Surveillance Committee to efficiently process information and generate official reports for evidence-based policy development

HAITI 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Haiti, visit https://haiti. unfpa.org



RESULT 1

The Ministry of National Education approved the integration of comprehensive sexuality education into the school syllabus



Over 9,600 young people including

4,886 in school and 4,526 out-of-school benefited from reproductive health and family planning information 234 health-care providers acquired more knowledge and skills in the survivor-centred approach to gender-based violence case management, in the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP)

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

RESULT 5

81 midwives completed their training cycle, and 357 midwives were deployed nationwide in public and private health institutions by 31 December

SUMMARY

Over 15,000 women, adolescent girls, youth and men, including persons with disabilities, benefited from sexual and reproductive health and genderbased violence services as part of humanitarian support With the implementation of the last mile reach with contraceptives and family

RESULT 6

=

planning services, 48 per cent of the service delivery points experienced no stock-outs of reproductive health commodities

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

101

© UNFPA HONDURAS

HONDURAS 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Honduras, visit https://honduras. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

In 2023, the logistic management system was expanded 18 health regions from 11 in 2021 RESULT 2

Emergency contraception was included in the National List of Medicines of the Ministry of Health RESULT 3

Local capacities in eight municipalities were strengthened to produce sociodemographic and economic indicators through the collection of digital data for municipal development planning, along with training of technicians (160) in the use and management of the digital platform for data collection of the Local Demographic Observatory

RESULT 4

The Maternal Health Care Protocol was updated by the Ministry of Health in coordination with the Honduran Society of Gynecology and Obstetrics, the Honduran Institute of Social Security, partners in academia and UNFPA

RESULT 5

An emergency obstetric and neonatal care study covering 46 health facilities in the three regions with the highest number of maternal deaths was undertaken jointly with Medicos del Mundo and the Ministry of Health

RESULT 6

The use of the Baby Checker was pre-tested in six indigenous municipalities. Baby Checker is a smartphone-based ultrasound designed to make pregnancies safer, powered by artificial intelligence (AI) to support the detection of at-risk pregnancies by community health workers and increase timely referrals

MEXICO 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Mexico, visit https://mexico. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

An innovative, sustainable and scalable financing model to reduce adolescent pregnancy and unlock the potential of adolescent girls was designed in the framework of a multiactor partnership focused on reducing adolescent pregnancy in Xochimilco and Yucatan

RESULT 2

A Guideline for the Implementation of the National Strategy for the Prevention of Adolescent Pregnancy at the territorial level was approved by the Interinstitutional Group for the Prevention of Adolescent Pregnancy RESULT 3

Around 1,300 adolescents from the town hall of Atizapán, Mexico State, received training on comprehensive sexuality education UNFPA

RESULT 4

The National Population Council with the support of UNFPA prepared and presented the population projections at national and state level for the period 2022–2070 as an input to strengthen the inclusion of population dynamics and sexual and reproductive health indicators in government plans, programmes and actions with a prospective approach

RESULT 5

A digital platform was developed with UNFPA support and in collaboration with the Population Council of the State of Mexico to support monitoring of the indicators of the Adolescent Pregnancy National Strategy at subnational level, including an experimental methodology to analyse human development among the youth population

RESULT 6

The Association of Professional Midwives and the Technological Universities of Tulancingo and Acapulco were incorporated in the National Programme Evaluation Committee of the Ministry of Health – recognizing midwifery as a profession with a specific area of competence as health personnel

NICARAGUA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Nicaragua, visit https:// nicaragua. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA NICARAGUA

Contraceptive provision was expanded as part of the strategy to reduce adolescent pregnancy, with UNFPA providing 23,000 subdermal implants and 334,000 male condoms through the Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention Project



Key strategies were approved by the Ministry of Education: (a) The interministerial Strategy for Comprehensive Sexuality Education Out of Schools (Ministry of Health, Ministry of the Family, Ministry of Youth), (b) the Strategy for Comprehensive Sexuality Education of the Counselling Offices of the Educational Communities and (c) the Strategy for Comprehensive Sexuality and Gender Education of the Teacher Training Colleges

RESULT 3

Within the framework of the approved strategy on comprehensive sexuality education out of schools, a methodology for addressing positive masculinities was developed and used with male public servants (30) from the Ministry of the Family, Ministry of Health and Ministry of Youth and with adolescent male leaders of the Schools of Values for Adolescents (279)

RESULT 4

The Ministry of Health strengthened the maternal health and family planning services in contraceptive counselling with an emphasis on long-acting reversible contraceptives

RESULT 5

Technical support was provided to strengthen the capacity of the National Institute for Development Information with more knowledge and skills in the implementation of the Multiple Indicator Cluster Survey (MICS 2023) and the strengthening of Vital Statistics related to sexual and reproductive health

RESULT 6

In 2023, 95 per cent of UNFPAsupported service delivery points offered comprehensive reproductive health services for adolescents, exceeding the target of 75 per cent

PANAMA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Panama, visit https://panama. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Procurement of family planning commodities increased by 33.14 per cent compared with 2022, and new government partners such as the Ministry of Social Development and the Ministry of Health were incorporated into the contraceptive procurement process

RESULT 2

The National Institute of Statistics and Census, Population and Housing Census conducted a census that counted 4,064,780 people in Panama

RESULT 3

180 health-care workers acquired more knowledge and skills in sexual and reproductive health, adolescent and child health, obstetric violence prevention, quality standards, long-acting reversible contraception methods and other topics

RESULT 4

Over 1,000 adolescents and young people benefited with knowledge on sexual and reproductive rights, teenage pregnancy prevention, and violence prevention through out-of-school sexuality education in UNFPA-supported centres in 13 regions

RESULT 5

17 Comprehensive Care Centres of the Ministry of Women's Affairs were strengthened to deal with cases of violence against women, with emphasis on irregular migrants transiting through the Darién border area

RESULT 6

Three safe spaces were installed for migrant women survivors of violence, and a women's health care space was also opened in the San Vicente Temporary Migrant Reception Station – with more than 120,000 women and girls benefiting from these centres

PARAGUAY 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Paraguay, visit https://paraguay. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA PARAGUAY

Unintended teenage pregnancy and its socioeconomic impact was repositioned on the political agenda of the new government following advocacy based on evidence from the MILENA and MEMI studies supported by UNFPA, and the high-level ministerial meeting promoted by the UNFPA Country Office RESULT 2

The National Plan for Accelerated Maternal Mortality Reduction was launched

RESULT 3

112 adolescents and young people received training in sexual and reproductive rights and gender-based violence, and at least 108 young people were reached through a sexual and reproductive rights fair

RESULT 4

A National Programme for the Prevention of Child Sexual Abuse was developed by four Ministries (Health, Education, Labour and Childhood and Adolescence) and approved by the National Council for Childhood and Adolescence

RESULT 5

A Youth Action Plan 2024–2028 was prepared by the National Youth Secretariat as result of a Youth Situation Report published jointly by UNFPA and its partners

RESULT 6

An inter-institutional roadmap of comprehensive care for women survivors of sexual violence was launched by the Ministry of Women, with technical support and advocacy actions led by UNFPA

PERU 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Peru, visit https://peru.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A multiannual plan to reduce maternal mortality and morbidity 2023–2026 was launched in Amazonas, one of Peru's regions exhibiting the highest maternal mortality rates and the largest access gaps to basic social services and infrastructure

RESULT 2

The Constitutional Court issued a sentence that guaranteed the right of women and adolescents to have universal and free access to oral emergency contraceptives

RESULT 3

The National Statistics Office acquired increased capacity in national population census implementation, especially with regards to planning skills and information technology. Population projections were updated to better include Venezuelan migrants and refugees and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, improving the accuracy of demographic data.



87 health-care providers improved their skills on the implementation of the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) on sexual and reproductive health in crisis situations. In addition, 105 genderbased violence protection service providers improved their skills on the Inter-Agency Minimum Standards for Gender-Based Violence in Emergencies Programming

RESULT 5

A guide for out-of-school comprehensive sexuality education was developed based on international standards. In 2023, 511 Afro-descendent and indigenous adolescents in Piura and Amazona benefited from the out-of-school comprehensive sexuality education

RESULT 6

The law prohibiting child marriage was approved and launched in November 2023

URUGUAY 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Uruguay, visit https://uruguay. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The 2023 Population and Housing Census was conducted, and the preliminary results disseminated RESULT 2

The country developed its first estimates of National Time Transfer Accounts, which provided a methodology to understand the link between population and development RESULT 3

A manual with recommendations for the management of obstetric emergencies to avoid cesarean sections was published and launched by the Ministry of Health with UNFPA support

RESULT 4

A roadmap for pregnant girls and adolescents under 15 years of age in primary and secondary education was prepared by the National Administration of Public Education)

RESULT 5

Adolescent fertility continued to decline, down from 36 births per 1,000 women aged 15–19 in 2018 to 20.9 in 2023 – a trend supported by UNFPA's work towards assuring contraceptive commodity security

RESULT 6

The capacity of 135 women leaders in the most vulnerable periphery of Montevideo was strengthened as Community Agents for the Prevention of Gender-Based Violence, including sexual violence

VENEZUELA (BOLIVARIAN REPUBLIC OF) 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Venezuela, visit https://venezuela. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

UNFPA supported the scale-up in the use of the intrauterine device (IUD), advancing the strategy in five states of the country

RESULT 2

378 trained professionals provided information to 22,396 people and provided contraceptives, implants and condoms to 15,891 women

RESULT 3

The capacities of public servants were strengthened to improve the route of access to justice for survivors of gender-based violence, focusing on the knowledge of the Organic Law on the Right of Women to a Life Free of Violence, the identification of secondary victimization practices and the promotion of due diligence

RESULT 4

The comprehensive sexuality

teachers and 19,747 children

and adolescents (53 per cent

adolescent girls and women,

and 47 per cent adolescent boys

and men) through the Learning

Projects of classroom teachers

education strategy was strengthened, reaching 3,461 RESULT 5

35,000 births were attended by qualified personnel, strengthening the capacities of health personnel to provide timely care and quality obstetrics services and improve access to maternal care by indigenous communities

RESULT 6

347 officials from the Venezuelan Institute of Planning, Ministry of Planning, the National Institute of Statistics and the Sectoral Vice Presidency of Planning acquired increased skills in demographic and population analysis

in 738 schools

WEST AND CENTRAL AFRICA

Benin Burkina Faso Cabo Verde Cameroon Central African Republic Chad Congo Côte d'Ivoire Equatorial Guinea Gabon Gambia Ghana Guinea Guinea-Bissau Liberia Mali Mauritania Niger Nigeria Sao Tome and Principe Senegal Sierra Leone Togo

BENIN 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Benin, visit https://benin. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The report on gender-sensitive civil status statistics was made available and provided data on registered births, deaths and marriages



Guidelines for the distribution of health products until the last mile were validated as a result of an inclusive and consensual process involving all stakeholders in the health product supply chain The Integrated Data System relating to Family, Women and Children was updated to allow the geolocation of genderbased violence and the web visualization of statistical data

RESULT 3



Over 3 million adolescents and youth were reached with the package of sexual and reproductive health, family planning and gender-based violence services

RESULT 4

RESULT 5

769,904 new acceptors of modern family planning methods were reported

RESULT 6

As of 2023, 919 schools provided comprehensive sexuality education



© UNFPA BENIN

© UNFPA BURKINA FASO

BURKINA FASO 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Burkina Faso, visit https:// burkinafaso. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1 RESULT 3 RESULT 2 The Action Plan 2023-2025 24.969 enumeration areas 10,000 young girls received of the roadmap for capturing were digitized as part of the reusable hygiene kits for the demographic dividend in fifth General Population and menstruation management Burkina Faso was endorsed Housing Census **RESULT 4 RESULT 5 RESULT 6** Over 534,000 women Over 60.140 women benefited 56,422 cases of direct obstetric benefited from sexual and from the Minimum Initial Service complications were managed Package (MISP) as a result of reproductive health services in emergency situations the training of 152 health and social action agents

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

SUMMARY

DUNFPA CABO VERDE

CABO VERDE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Cabo Verde, visit https://wcaro. unfpa.org/en

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

32 health professionals from the islands of Boavista, Maio, Santo Antão, Santiago and São Nicolau benefited from a training programme in Mindelo, São Vicente and were able to carry out the evaluation and follow-up of labour, anticipate and prevent potential complications during the postpartum period, carry out the timely diagnosis of dystocia for a rapid approach and provide greater client satisfaction

RESULT 2

The Childbirth Registration and Monitoring System was implemented at the national level, covering all health-care facilities across the 22 municipalities of the country

RESULT 3

A "Declaration of Porto Inglês" was adopted, outlining the priorities and commitments made by both young people and national authorities to enhance their participation in the country's development process

A comprehensive Strategic Plan for Support Persons with Disabilities was developed A comprehensive Strategic Plan for Support Persons with Disabilities was developed A comprehensive sexuality enhanced training in preventing and responding to gender- based violence, strengthening their competencies in these critical areas	RESULT 4	RESULT 5	RESULT 6
	Plan for Support Persons with	police professionals received enhanced training in preventing and responding to gender- based violence, strengthening their competencies in these	by a comprehensive sexuality education programme aligned

CAMEROON 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Cameroon, visit https:// cameroon.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A country compact between the Government of the Republic of Cameroon and UNFPA Supplies was signed. The compact aim to scale up the acquisition and management of reproductive health and family planning products over the 2022–2026 period RESULT 2

Creation of Adolescent Reproductive Health Units at the regional level was authorized

RESULT 3

Over 26,800 new women and girls received at least one genderbased violence essential services

RESULT 4

207 health providers and 205 community health workers acquired more knowledge and skills in the provision of comprehensive family planning services

RESULT 5

155 health facilities in the national emergency obstetric and newborn care (EmNOC) network provided integrated maternal and neonatal health services, taking into account the humanitarian context and public health emergency, compared to 100 health facilities in 2021 RESULT 6

1,294 women and girls living with obstetric fistula received surgical repair

SUMMARY

114

CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Central African Republic, visit https:// car.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

54 women suffering from obstetric fistula received surgical repair

Over 55,500 people benefited

RESULT 2

from contraceptives distributed through youth organizations

Over 46,300 new acceptors of family planning were reported

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

4,224 survivors of genderbased violence, including 1,246 survivors of rape, were treated within 72 hours, with the support of 18 safe spaces or care centres located in Bangassou, Bangui, Berberati, Boda, Bouar, Kouango, Nola and Sibut

RESULT 5

More than 650 community and religious leaders committed to promoting family planning in their respective communities

RESULT 6

The capacities of 12 health facilities, including 5 in comprehensive emergency obstetric and neonatal care and 7 in basic emergency obstetric and neonatal care, were strengthened to provide quality services for pregnant women

CHAD 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Chad, visit https://chad. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The Education for Life and Reproductive Health for young people was launched, contributing to increasing the number of young people and adolescents accepting modern contraceptive methods RESULT 2

433 women and girls living with obstetric fistula received treatment RESULT 3

111 midwives were recruited and deployed in twelve provinces. They carried out 161,420 safe deliveries

RESULT 4

which 124,103 accepted the use

of contraceptive methods

155,277 adolescents and young people benefited from sexual and reproductive health services, of RESULT 5

6,265 survivors of genderbased violence benefited from multifaceted service packages ranging from psychosocial and medical care, legal aid and legal assistance RESULT 6

Over 202,000 new family planning acceptors were reported

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE

SUMMARY

CONGO 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Congo, visit https://congo. unfpa.org

RESULT 1

Over 289,000 women, adolescents and young people, including those living with disabilities, benefited from quality services related to sexual and reproductive health, including gender-based violence prevention and protection

Key Results Achieved in 2023

The capacities of the National Association of Midwives of Congo were strengthened with the renewal of governing bodies and the establishment of an electronic professional register

RESULT 2

160,786 adolescent girls, youth, indigenous people, women living with disabilities and women living with HIV and AIDS received integrated sexual and reproductive health and HIV services

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

In the humanitarian context in the departments of Cuvette, Likouala, Plateaux, Pointe-Noire and Pool, 15,699 prenatal consultations were conducted and 4,771 deliveries attended, including 299 (56 per cent) cesarean sections

RESULT 5

In collaboration with UNFPA and the World Bank, the Ministry of Health and Population developed a map of health workers in public health facilities A mapping of the population groups most difficult to reach with sexual and reproductive health services, including family planning, was carried out in Brazzaville, Dolisie, Ouesso, Pointe-Noire and Sibiti

RESULT 6

© UNFPA CONGO

CÔTE D'IVOIRE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Côte d'Ivoire, visit https:// cotedivoire. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The Emergency Obstetrics Network was officially validated by the Ministry of Health RESULT 2

A national guidebook on menstrual health and hygiene was developed jointly by the Ministries of Education and Health, in partnership with UNFPA and civil society organizations RESULT 3

150 communities committed to the abandonment of harmful practices, including female genital mutilation and child marriage, in the following localities: Anyama, Bloléquin, Diawala, Didiévi, Grand Béréby, Grand-Lahou, Kong, Odiénné, Port-Bouët, Songon, Tabagne, Taoudi, Touba and Vavoua



© UNFPA EQUATORIAL GUINEA / Flora Isabel M. Obama

EQUATORIAL GUINEA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Equatorial Guinea, visit https:// equatorialguinea. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

A nationwide study to collect data on gender-based violence in Equatorial Guinea was implemented



A computer application was introduced that allows health-care workers in maternity wards to be connected 24/7 for technical consultation when faced with a difficult case 25 public health facilities provided emergency obstetric and newborn care (EmNOC) in 2022 compared with 23 in 2021

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

70 health facilities provided comprehensive health care for adolescents and young people

RESULT 5

The personnel of 27 district health facilities were trained in the management of the supply chain of medicines, supplies and handling of medical equipment RESULT 6

An information system for logistics management and monitoring of medicines and family planning supplies was developed

GABON 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Gabon, visit https://gabon. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1 Ę **RESULT 3 RESULT 2** A national reproductive The comprehensive sexuality The provision of sexual and health policy for 2022-2031 education capacities of 528 reproductive health services was validated teachers and 77 personnel for adolescents and youth from specialized services in was improved owing to the the provinces of Estuaire, Haut introduction of services from Ogooué and Moyen Ogooué a mobile clinic were strengthened **RESULT 6 RESULT 4 RESULT 5** Over 40,800 students acquired 267 adolescents and young 71 public schools (pre-primary, increased knowledge in people accessed HIV primary and secondary) comprehensive sexuality viral load testing implemented the comprehensive education knowledge sexuality education programme

GAMBIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA The Gambia, visit https://gambia. unfpa.org

Kev	Resu	ts Ac	hievec	l in 2

RESULT 1

Three regions developed public declarations on ending female genital mutilation

RESULI

The national female genital mutilation policy with a costed implementation plan was validated A national out-of-school comprehensive sexuality education manual was finalized

RESULT 3

023

RESULT 4

RESULT 5

No maternal deaths were
registered across any of the 264
health facility deliveries owing
to the Kabilo Baama Initiative
in the Kiang East district, which
aims to improve maternal and
child health services at the88.2 per cent of service delivery
points that offered three modern
contraceptives in accordance
with national protocols had no
stock-outs, compared with 75.6
per cent in 2020

RESULT 6

611 survivors of gender-based violence were reached with services, including psychosocial counselling, clinical management of rape, livelihood and economic empowerment and legal services

community level

GHANA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Ghana, visit https://ghana. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

© UNFPA GI

The reproductive health commodity security survey was conducted, resulting in the availability of current data on reproductive health security for decision-making RESULT 2

A national framework was developed by the Gender Ministry for engaging traditional leaders in a standardized approach on gender, scaling up efforts to end gender-based violence and harmful practices, and promoting gender equality RESULT 3

A National Policy and Plan of Action for the Domestic Violence Act was developed

RESULT 4

The Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP) was established in six regions and 207 government and civil society organization partners were trained at the regional level to address gender-based violence at the subnational level

RESULT 5

96,819 adolescents and young people, including 242 adolescents with disabilities, were reached with reproductive health education through the training, retraining and deployment of 123 peer educators and support to 277 in and out-of-school adolescent health clubs in project districts

RESULT 6

Over 21,900 marginalized adolescent girls at risk or affected by child marriage benefited from Adolescent Girls' Peer Mentoring and Reproductive Health programmes

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

GUINEA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Guinea, visit https://guinea. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

40 per cent of the villages covered by the UNFPA programme offered at least three modern contraceptive methods compared to 31 per cent of villages in 2021 RESULT 2

234 health service providers, including midwives, were mentored on childbirth, antenatal care, use of the partograph, resuscitation, episiotomy, postpartum family planning and referrals A national week of free family planning services was organized in the 33 prefectures and the special zone of Conakry enabled 60,740 women to benefit from a modern family planning method, including 45,056 new users and 15,684 existing users

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

42,427 adolescents aged 10–19 benefited from modern methods of contraception

SUMMARY

RESULT 5

115 women with obstetric fistulas were screened and surgically treated

RESULT 6

21 new health structures integrated gender-based violence care into their reproductive, maternal, neonatal, infant and adolescent health service package, making it possible to take care of 160 cases of gender-based violence, including 30 cases of rape out of which 8 cases were among children under 15 years of age

123

UNFPA GUINEA

GUINEA-BISSAU 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Guinea-Bissau, visit https:// guinea-bissau. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

Four men's clubs were formed to address genderbased violence and female genital mutilation RESULT 2

The Government of Guinea Bissau and UNFPA signed a pact of commitment for the purchase of reproductive health products, including contraceptives RESULT 3

OF FORMACA

17,505 new users of modern family planning methods were recruited

RESULT 4

117 health professionals including 44 midwives and more than 44 members of health region management teams were trained on the Minimum Initial Service Package (MISP)

RESULT 5

60 young people from youth networks benefited from capacity building in Bafatá on sexual and reproductive health and reproductive rights

RESULT 6

42 women with obstetric fistula benefited from fistula repair surgery

SUMMARY

LIBERIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Liberia, visit https://liberia. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The National Population and Housing Census was completed and the report published for use in informing and developing the 2024 National Development Plan



The National Five-Year Midwifery Strategy (2023–2027) and operational plan were finalized

RESULT 3

Using motorcycle riders (30) to deliver timely and essential reproductive health commodities to hard-to-reach health facilities (20) was piloted, leading to 100 per cent of the facilities receiving their supplies within the first week of the quarterly distribution

RESULT 4

A functional logistics management information system was established which has enhanced consumption and reporting of reproductive health commodities

RESULT 5

74,890 young people in school and out-of-school benefited from comprehensive sexuality education RESULT 6

Over 527,000 people benefited with family planning commodities

MALI 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Mali, visit https://mali.unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1

The counting phase of the Fifth General Population and Housing Census was completed

UNFPA MAL

RESULT 2

80 per cent of the regions of Mali had at least one centre for the care of gender-based violence survivors, including humanitarian zones RESULT 3

More than 300 declarations of abandonment of harmful practices were made by village communities in Mali, including 216 supported directly by UNFPA and its partners

RESULT 4

The national multisectoral strategy to end child marriage and the national policy for the promotion and child protection and its action plan was disseminated by the Ministry for the Promotion of Women, Children and the Family

RESULT 5

77 per cent of service delivery points did not experience a stock shortage as a result of the "Logistics Assistant" initiative

RESULT 6

Nearly 300,000 new family planning users were reported, owing to the national planning campaign and the advanced strategies for intensification of the family planning service offer organized at the health district level

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

MAURITANIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Mauritania, visit https://mauritania. unfpa.org



RESULT 1

Within the framework of the South-South cooperation Guinea, Mauritania and Senegal, the survey on behaviour change to stop female genital mutilation enabled the assessment of the qualitative and quantitative approaches used by the partner non-governmental organizations implementing the UNFPA–UNICEF Joint Programme on the Elimination of Female Genital Mutilation

RESULT 2

The National Population Policy was updated and validated with the integration of the country commitments for ICPD25 and aligned with the five-year plan of the Accelerated Growth and Shared Prosperity Strategy 2021–2025

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 3

A national integrated reproductive health strategy was developed

RESULT 4

Over 1,000 women and girls exposed to gender-based violence in humanitarian areas were reached with GBV prevention and case management services, life skills training and dignity kits RESULT 5

100 service delivery points were equipped with family planning product management tools including stock sheets, delivery notes, order forms and temperature monitoring sheets

RESULT 6

200 service providers were trained on-site in reproductive health product logistics management tools

NIGER 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Niger, visit https://niger. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1 Ξ **RESULT 3 RESULT 2** Over 568,000 new 175 health centres were Reproductive Health Education for upgraded to offer basic Adolescents and Young People users of modern emergency obstetric care, was implemented throughout contraceptives were reported meeting the 2023 targets the country, in school and in nonof 149 school settings **RESULT 4 RESULT 5 RESULT 6** The Government institutionalized The Association of Midwives 125 safe spaces were set up in the School Health Clubs by of Niger updated the register Niamey (5), Maradi (23), Tillabéri joint decree of the Ministry of of midwifery practitioners in (29), Zinder (29) and Tahoua (39) National Education and that of the whole country through a

digital platform



NEXT PAGE

PREVIOUS PAGE

SUMMARY

Public Health, Population and

Social Affairs

NIGERIA 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Nigeria, visit https://nigeria. unfpa.org



RESULT 1

The revised National Gender Policy was launched to provide a framework for gender programming and increased multisectoral capacity RESULT 2

The National Contraceptives Logistics Management System guidelines and tools were updated to align with the current need to improve accountability and visibility across the family planning commodity supply chain management system The National Guidelines on Maternal, Perinatal and Child Death Surveillance and Response in Nigeria were launched

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

The Medical and Dental Council of Nigeria updated their Code of Ethics to reflect the recognition of female genital mutilation as a harmful practice against medical ethics

RESULT 5

42 communities publicly declared the abandonment of female genital mutilation in Imo and Ebonyi states by engaging 86 religious leaders and community/ traditional influencers to denounce FGM

RESULT 6

103,359 individuals were reached with essential reproductive health services and referrals

SAO TOME AND PRINCIPE 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Sao Tome and Principe, visit https:// saotomeandprincipe. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1 RESULT 2 RESULT 3 The National Plan for the A database was launched in Around 30,000 people accessed Supply of Reproductive Sao Tome and Principe with key essential sexual and reproductive Health Products for 2022population data in the country health services 2026 was developed **RESULT 4 RESULT 5 RESULT 6** A system for tracking 20 professionals from the 57 per cent (target 47 per cent for 2023) of districts and monitoring national national police and the commitments was integrated counselling centre against established a multi-stakeholder into the Ministry of Finance, domestic violence were trained coordination mechanisms on Planning and Blue Economy on gender-based violence adolescents and youth

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

SENEGAL 2023

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Senegal, visit https://senegal. unfpa.org

Ę

Key Results Achieved in 2023

Senegal adopted a national strategy for prevention of female genital mutilation accompanied by a five-year action plan

RESULT 1

RESULT 2

The Government made a formal commitment to subsidize the cost of treatment for obstetric fistulas

90 per cent of service delivery points did not experience a stockout of contraceptive products in the last six months in 2023

RESULT 3

RESULT 4

Over 30,000 adolescents and

youth, including young people

with disabilities, benefited from

high-quality services related to

sexual and reproductive health

RESULT 5

102 communities made declarations of abandonment of harmful practices, including female genital mutilation and child marriage Over 15,800 adolescent girls and women received genderbased violence prevention and care services

RESULT 6

To learn more about the work and impact of UNFPA Sierra Leone, visit https:// sierraleone. unfpa.org

Key Results Achieved in 2023

RESULT 1 RESULT 2 RESULT 3 The Gender Equality and Skilled birth attendance in Sierra 99.3 per cent of all service delivery points offered Women's Empowerment Act of Leone increased by 15 per cent at least three modern 2022 was operationalized following the graduation and deployment of 260 additional contraceptive methods midwives to health facilities across the country RESULT 6 **RESULT 4 RESULT 5** A 10 per cent reduction in the 55 per cent of women were 7,971 marginalized girls, including number of maternal deaths in the estimated to have their demand girls with disabilities, were saved country was recorded through for family planning met with a from child marriage through the the maternal death surveillance modern method, an increase safe spaces programme from 45 per cent in 2019 and response system

PREVIOUS PAGE NEXT PAGE SUMMARY

SIFRRA



Over 662,900 young people (358,225 girls and 304,669 boys) were reached by an e-friendly application that provided online advice and guidance on sexual and reproductive health 5,991 new family planning users were reached by two mobile clinics offering family planning services in the Maritime and Savanes Over 1,900 people benefited from services provided by 18 counselling centres for survivors

of gender-based violence

